
Meeting contact Nina Neisser on 01257 515140 or email nina.neisser@chorley.gov.uk

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 6TH NOVEMBER 2018, 6.30 PM
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY

AGENDA

APOLOGIES

1 MINUTES OF MEETING TUESDAY, 2 OCTOBER 2018 OF 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE  

(Pages 3 - 4)

2 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary 
interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda.

If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. 
Normally you should leave the room before the business starts to be 
discussed. You do, however, have the same right to speak as a 
member of the public and may remain in the room to enable you to 
exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you must 
not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter.

3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED

The Director (Customer and Digital) has submitted six items for 
planning applications to be determined (enclosed).

Plans to be considered will be displayed at the meeting or may be 
viewed in advance by following the links to the current planning 
applications on our website.  
https://planning.chorley.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application    

A 18/00191/FUL - LAND REAR OF 24/26 WESTHOUGHTON 
ROAD, ADLINGTON

(Pages 5 - 12)

B 18/00560/FUL - SARSCOW FARM, SARSCOW LANE, 
ECCLESTON, LEYLAND

(Pages 13 - 22)

C 18/00586/FUL - LAND AT THE REAR OF 63 AND 67 BOLTON 
ROAD, CHORLEY

(Pages 23 - 34)

D 18/00847/FUL - LAND TO THE REAR OF 56 SCHOOL LANE, 
WITHNELL FOLD OLD ROAD, BRINSCALL

(Pages 35 - 46)

https://planning.chorley.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://planning.chorley.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


E 18/00863/OUTMAJ - LAND AT CARRINGTON ROAD, 
ADLINGTON

(Pages 47 - 58)

F 18/00843/FULMAJ - LAND EAST OF WIGAN LANE, COPPULL (Pages 59 - 62)

4 PLANNING APPEALS AND DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 1 
SEPTEMBER 2018 AND 29 OCTOBER 2018  

(Pages 63 - 64)

5 ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR  

GARY HALL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Development Control Committee Councillor 
June Molyneaux (Chair), Councillor Christopher France (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
Aaron Beaver, Martin Boardman, Henry Caunce, John  Dalton, Danny Gee, Tom Gray, 
Yvonne Hargreaves, Keith Iddon, Alistair Morwood, Steve Murfitt, Paul Walmsley, Neville Whitham 
and Alan Whittaker. 

Electronic agendas sent to Development Control Committee reserves for information.

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk

To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here 
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=
doc&cat=13021&path=13021 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021


Development Control Committee Tuesday, 2 October 2018

MINUTES OF DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE Tuesday, 2 October 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor June Molyneaux (Chair), Councillor 
Christopher France (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
Aaron Beaver, Martin Boardman, John  Dalton, 
Danny Gee, Yvonne Hargreaves, Keith Iddon, 
Sheila Long, Alistair Morwood, Steve Murfitt, 
Paul Walmsley, Neville Whitham and Alan Whittaker

OFFICERS: Adele Hayes (Planning Services Manager), Alex Jackson 
(Legal Services Team Leader) and Nina Neisser 
(Democratic and Member Services Officer)

APOLOGIES: Councillors Henry Caunce and Tom Gray

18.DC.32 Minutes of meeting Tuesday 11 September 2018 of Development Control 
Committee

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Development Control Committee held on 
11 September 2018 be approved as a correct record for signature by the Chair.

18.DC.33 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest received.

18.DC.34 Planning applications to be determined

The Director of Customer and Digital submitted three items for consideration. In 
considering the applications, Members of the Development Control Committee took 
into account the agenda reports, the addendum and the verbal representations and 
submissions provided by officers and individuals. 

a 18/00631/FUL - Elite Plumbing and Heating Supplies Ltd, Unit 21, Highfield 
Industrial Estate, North Street, Chorley, PR7 1QD

Registered speaker: Chris Weetman (Agent)

After careful consideration, it was proposed by Councillor Christopher France that the 
application be approved. The motion was seconded by Councillor Paul Walmsley. A 
vote was taken and the motion was lost (6:8:0)

It was proposed by Councillor Danny Gee, seconded by Councillor Alistair Morwood 
and subsequently RESOLVED (8:6:0) – That planning permission be refused for 
the following reason:

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 1



Development Control Committee Tuesday, 2 October 2018

1) The proposed extension by reason of its siting, scale and massing would 
have an unacceptable overbearing impact on the outlook from the rear 
habitable room windows of numbers 55 and 57 The Crescent and their 
private amenity space. This would be detrimental to the level of amenity 
enjoyed by the occupiers of these neighbouring properties. The proposal 
is, therefore, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework and 
policies BNE 1 and EP3 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026.

b 18/00793/FUL - Goodyear Business Park, Gorsey Lane, Mawdesley

Registered speaker: Chris Charlton (Objector)

After careful consideration, it was proposed by Councillor Christopher France, 
seconded by Councillor Paul Walmsley and subsequently RESOLVED (unanimously) 
– That full planning permission be refused for the following reason:

1) The site lies in an area not identified for growth within policy 1 of the 
Central Lancashire Core Strategy, which seeks to direct growth and 
investment towards the most sustainable locations. The proposed 
development forms part of a wider development scheme that is not small 
scale or limited to appropriate infilling, conversion of buildings or 
meeting local need, but that demonstrated exceptional reasons advanced 
in support of a larger scale development. The removal of the scout hut as 
a community facility therefore goes to the heart of the original outline 
planning permission for the site. Without the scout hut the benefits 
associated with the proposed development do not amount to exceptional 
reasons for a larger scale redevelopment of the site and the development 
as a whole is, therefore, contrary to policy 1 of the Central Lancashire 
Core Strategy and the spatial vision that underlies it. The presumption in 
favour of sustainable development set out at paragraph 11 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework does not, therefore, apply to the proposed 
development.

c 18/00763/FUL - Gelston, Dawson Lane, Whittle-le-Woods, Chorley

Registered speaker: Neil Ward (Applicant)

After careful consideration, it was proposed by Councillor Christopher France, 
seconded by Councillor Alan Whittaker and subsequently RESOLVED (unanimously) 
– That full planning permission be granted, subject to conditions in the report.

Chair Date 

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 1



APPLICATION REPORT – 18/00191/FUL

Validation Date: 16 March 2018

Ward: Adlington And Anderton

Type of Application: Full Planning

Proposal: Erection of 7no. dwellings and associated works

Location: Land Rear Of 24/26 Westhoughton Road Adlington  

Case Officer: Mr Iain Crossland

Applicant: Mr E Joynt

Agent: Mr Joshua Hellawell

Consultation expiry: 22 May 2018

Decision due by: 7 November 2018

RECOMMENDATION

1. It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and a Section 
106 Obligation to secure the provision of a commuted sum for the provision of new play 
equipment at King George V Play Area.

SITE DESCRIPTION

2. The application site is located on land to the south of Rawlinson Lane between a railway line 
to the east and existing residential development to the west. It is located within the 
settlement area of Adlington and is currently accessed via a short road currently serving 
three properties. 

3. Whilst bordered by trees, a large majority of the site is covered by hardstanding, with the site 
previously being used intermittently for storage purposes, and more recently as a base for 
Network Rail contractors to carry out works to the railway. The site is long and narrow at 
approximately 20m in width, extending to approximately 285m in length. 

4. The character of the surrounding area is residential and consists largely of modern detached 
dwellings with more traditional terraced and semi-detached dwellings to the west of the site 
facing Westhoughton Road. The railway line to the east of the site is a notable feature in the 
context of the application site. It is noted that permission has been previously granted, in 
2016, for the erection of two dwellings to the north of the application site (application ref 
16/00498/FUL) adjacent to no.3 Mercer Court.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

5. The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 7no. dwellings and associated 
works. Access would be taken from Mercer Court and the dwellings would be set out in a 
linear arrangement along an access drive with a turning head to the far south of the site. The 
dwellings themselves would be of a traditional design style although their scale would be 
similar to that of a dormer bungalow. The parking and gardens would be positioned to the 
sides of the proposed dwellings. 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 3a



REPRESENTATIONS

6. Representations in objection to the proposed development have been received from the 
occupiers of 8 addresses. These raise the following issues:
 Impact on drainage and flooding on the proposed properties and existing properties.
 The gardens to the rear of Westhoughton Road flood due to the presence of a natural 

underground water supply.
 Impact on wildlife.
 Existing issues of noise, dust and air pollution from railway engineering works.
 The ground is clay, which impedes natural drainage.
 Water flows from gardens to the west of the site onto the application site.
 If approved no work should take place during the summer.
 The area is an area at risk of flooding.
 If surface water is prevented from draining onto the application site from gardens to the 

west then the dwellings along Westhoughton Road would be affected.
 Inadequate local electricity supply to support more dwellings.
 Impact on highway safety.

CONSULTATIONS

7. Regulatory Services - Environmental Health: Have no objection subject to conditions.

8. Waste & Contaminated Land: Have no objection subject to a condition.

9. Lancashire Highway Services: Have no objection subject to conditions.

10. Lead Local Flood Authority: Have no objection.

11. United Utilities: Have no objection subject to conditions.

12. Network Rail: Objection to the layout of the dwellings in relation to the less than 2m gap from 
the railway boundary.

13. Greater Manchester Ecology Unit: Have no objection.

14. Adlington Town Council: Object to the application and consider that the land is unsuitable for 
development for the following reasons:
 The plans submitted are unclear and inconsistent as to the proposed location of the 

buildings
 The ecological survey indicated no evidence of wildlife, but local residents disagree and 

have reported the presence of hedgehogs, frogs, toads and birds on adjacent land
 The area is subject to localised flooding in wet weather conditions. Additional 

development could therefore adversely impact on existing residents unless additional 
land drainage was provided

 Residents along Westhoughton Road have been subject to frequent power outages 
which implies that additional or an improved power infrastructure in that area would be 
required to supply additional properties

 The access to the site is onto a narrow road (Rawlinson Lane) at a junction where 
visibility for motorists is impaired by the wall of the railway bridge. Additional traffic at 
this junction would be detrimental to road users whether exiting the development or 
passing the junction.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of the development
15. The National Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) states that housing applications 

should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. This means that development proposals that accord with the development 
plan should be approved without delay.

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 3a



16. Policy 1(d) of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy states that some growth and investment 
will be encouraged in Urban Local Service Centres such as Adlington, where the site is 
located, therefore, the proposed development is in line with this policy.

17. The application site is not designated within the local plan and is previously developed land. 
One of the core principles of the Framework is that development should be focussed in 
locations that are sustainable. It is considered that the site is located in a sustainable 
location within easy access of amenities and public transport. The Framework also states 
that development in sustainable locations should be approved without delay.

Design and impact on the character of the area
18. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be 

granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing 
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the 
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and 
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.

19. The application site is located off Rawlinson Lane, via Mercer Court, and is a long narrow 
strip of land between the railway to the east and existing residential development to the 
west. The site does not occupy a prominent position and the proposed dwellings on the site 
would only be visible via glimpses from distance. As such any development of the site would 
have a limited visual impact on the broader character of the area.  

20. The proposed development comprises seven detached dwellings set out in a linear 
arrangement along an access drive that terminates in a turning head. The dwellings 
themselves are of a traditional design style although the scale of the dwellings would be 
similar to that of a dormer bungalow. Given that the site is hard surfaced, is currently used 
as a site compound for Network Rail and has been used sporadically for outdoor storage in 
the past the proposed development would improve the appearance of the site. The dwellings 
themselves comprise features such as art stone heads and sills, brick detailing, and gables 
with large areas of glazing.  These would provide diversity and interest. It is noted that there 
are a range of property types in the area, and the use of a traditional design style is 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area.

21. The properties would all have garden areas to the sides providing sufficient space for the 
storage of bins and driveway parking, as well as private outdoor amenity space. The 
frontages would be open plan contributing to an open and uncluttered street scene, and 
appropriate boundary treatments would be secured by condition. 

22. The overall density of the development would reflect the urban character of the area and 
density of nearby housing, which consists of modern detached dwellings and older terraces 
and semi-detached properties.

23. Overall the layout and design of the proposed development is considered acceptable and 
appropriate to the existing surrounding development and is in accordance with policy 17 of 
the Core Strategy. 

24. The development is, therefore, considered to be in accordance with Policy BNE1 of the 
Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026.

Impact on neighbour amenity
25. The proposed dwellings contain the majority of living space at ground floor with a single 

habitable room in the roof space that is set in from the front elevation and separated from 
the window by a void space. The nearest residential properties to the site are located to the 
west side of the site at Kings Lea. All of these dwellings are positioned at an angle to the 
proposed dwellings and, therefore, no parallel facing window relationships would be created.

26. The dwellings at 8, 9, 10, 15, 16 and 17 Kings Lea are positioned closest to the site and 
their rear gardens bound the site. The proposed dwellings would be positioned to the east of 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 3a



these existing dwellings and the degree of separation is such that there would be no 
adverse impact on light or outlook given the design and scale of the proposed dwellings. 

27. It is, therefore, considered that the impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers from the 
proposed development is acceptable. It is also considered that the relationships between the 
proposed dwellings themselves is acceptable subject to suitable boundary treatment. 

28. The application site is located adjacent to a railway line and, therefore, the impact of noise 
upon the amenity of future residents is of some concern. A noise assessment has been 
submitted in support of the application, which the Council’s Environmental Health Officer 
(EHO) considers has used appropriate assessment criteria and has been carried out using a 
reputable environmental consultant and is, therefore, suitable. Measurements of noise 
levels, largely from passing trains, have been taken over a period of more than 2 weeks and 
these measurements have then been used to predict likely internal and external noise levels 
at the proposed properties. 

29. The EHO accepts the conclusions and recommendations contained within the report subject 
to the consideration of planning conditions relating to the specification of windows and 
soundproofing that reflect the recommendations set out in the report. 

30. A suitable rail vibration assessment has also been provided and the conclusions of the 
report are accepted, which states that there should not be an adverse impact from vibration 
based on vibration measurements taken on site. 

31. It is noted that there is a history of complaints from local residents concerning night time 
noise, fumes from diesel generators and excess light, which were received by the 
Environmental Health section in July 2017. These complaints concern the use of the 
proposed development site by Network Rail as a depot and line access point in connection 
with the ongoing rail electrification works, although it is understood that the site was used by 
Network Rail for this purpose for some time prior to July 2017. Network Rail has a right of 
access to the track in the proposed development area to carry out operational works to the 
railway. 

32. Although some concerns have been raised with regards to further disturbance if the 
proposed development is approved and implemented it is noted that the building of houses 
on this land would prevent the ongoing use of the land as a depot and storage area, which 
has caused a number of problems for local residents. The Council’s EHO, therefore, 
supports this application, although it is noted that the right of access to the track may 
remain.

33. The proposed development is likely to improve the situation for local residents from a noise 
and disturbance perspective, however, it is recommended that a Construction Method 
Statement is required prior to the commencement of any construction, given the narrow 
nature of the site, proximity of neighbouring dwellings and history of noise complaints. 

Highway safety
34. The application site would be accessed from Mercer Court, which in turn provides an 

existing vehicular access to Rawlinson Lane. The access to Mercer Court would be 
realigned by moving the radii kerbs towards the east following the shortening of the length of 
the brick wall. As the wall is at a raised level relative to the carriageway of Mercer Court, the 
height of the wall and its piers would be reduced to no more than 0.600m to provide a 
clearer sightline for drivers in order for vulnerable pedestrians, such as children, to be seen 
when negotiating the junction. The junction alterations would be carried out through the 
section 278 agreement of the highways act 1980. On this basis LCC consider that the 
proposed development is acceptable from a from a highway safety perspective.
 

35. In terms of the parking requirement off-street car parking would be provided in accordance 
with the current Chorley Council parking standard set out in Appendix A of the Chorley Local 
Plan 2012 - 2026, which requires two parking spaces per three bedroomed dwelling.

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 3a



Drainage
36. The application site is a low lying strip of land that has been hard surfaced and currently has 

a low level of permeability. This is evidenced in the indicative drainage strategy that has 
been submitted in support of the application, which has identified the site lying in a region 
characterised by slowly permeable seasonally wet slightly acid but base rich loamy and 
clayey soils with impeded drainage that is not conducive to infiltration. The indicative 
drainage strategy proposes that surface water runoff from the proposed buildings roofs, 
access road and hardstanding areas should discharge into Eller Brook, which flows from 
east to west to the north of the site in a culvert approximately three metres below the 
existing site levels. It is proposed that the surface water flow from the developed site is 
attenuated to 4 l/s. This proposal is accepted by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA).

37. A number of concerns have been raised from residents occupying properties to the west of 
the site with regards to surface water drainage issues on their own land and the impact of 
the proposed development in relation to water draining off their land and onto the application 
site. It would appear that there are historic issues of waterlogging and the pooling of water 
on land the rear of dwellings facing Westhoughton Road. It is not considered that the 
proposed development would exacerbate the waterlogging issues experienced on the land 
and gardens to the west of the site and the proposed development cannot be required to 
address existing surface water run-off and waterlogging issues arising on land within 
separate ownership that is not associated with the application site.  

38. Although it is noted that surface water may flow onto the application site from the land to the 
west the applicant has provided an indicative drainage strategy setting out that surface 
water will be directed into Eller Brook, and it is noted that the LLFA raise no objection to the 
proposed development. 

Ecology
39. The application site comprises extensive areas of hard standing and recently re-vegetated 

land following previous uses. There is little in the way of semi-natural habitat present and the 
potential of the site to support any specially protected species is low. The site may be used 
by more common species moving along the adjacent railway line or associated with nearby 
gardens, although this use is likely to be transient or for minor foraging activity. 

40. It is not, therefore, considered that the site has substantive nature conservation importance 
and it is noted that Greater Manchester Ecology Unit do not object to the proposed 
development on nature conservation grounds. 

Public open space
41. The proposed development would generate a requirement for the provision of public open 

space in line with policies HS4a and HS4b of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 and the 
Open Space and Playing Pitch SPD. The Councils agreed approach is to only seek 
contributions towards provision for children/young people on developments of 10 dwellings 
or fewer.  There is currently a surplus of provision in Adlington in relation to this standard 
and the site is within the accessibility catchment (800m) of an area of provision for 
children/young people. A contribution towards new provision in the settlement is, therefore, 
not required from this development. However, there are areas of provision for children/young 
people within the accessibility catchment that are identified as being low quality and/or low 
value in the Open Space Study (site 1291.1 King George V Play Area). A contribution 
towards improvements to these sites is, therefore, required from this development. The 
amount required is £134 per dwelling.

Community Infrastructure Levy
42. The Chorley CIL Infrastructure Charging Schedule provides a specific amount for 

development. The CIL Charging Schedule was adopted on 16 July 2013 and charging 
commenced on 1 September 2013. The proposed development will be a chargeable 
development and the charge is subject to indexation in accordance with the Council’s 
Charging Schedule. 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 3a



Other matters
43. Impact on operational railway land: It is noted that Network Rail object to the layout of the 

proposed dwellings in relation to the less than 2m gap from the railway boundary. The 
development would, however, be contained within the parameters of the application site and 
would not encroach on any Network Rail owned land. Any impact on the operation of the 
railway is a civil matter for the developer and network rail to resolve. The guidelines provided 
by Network Rail are noted and shall be attached to any decision notice that may be issued 
following the grant of planning permission. 

44.Inadequate local electricity supply to support more dwellings: It is for Electricity Northwest to 
respond to any electricity demand and supply issues in the locality and is not a material 
planning consideration.

CONCLUSION

45. The proposed development would have the benefit of providing new housing in a 
sustainable location, and would regenerate a previously developed site. The proposal would 
have no unacceptable detrimental impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and 
would result in an overall improvement in the appearance of the site. In addition there would 
be no unacceptable impact on highway safety, drainage, or ecology. On the basis of the 
above, it is recommended that planning permission be granted.

RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE

Ref: 75/00225/FUL Decision: REFFPP Decision Date: 12 May 1975
Description: Motor vehicle repair workshop

Ref: 04/00224/TEL Decision: WDN Decision Date: 18 March 2004
Description: Prior notification of siting of 15m lightweight lattice mast with 4 antennaes, 2 
600mm dishes, radio equipment housing and ancillary development,

Ref: 06/01409/OUT Decision: WDN Decision Date: 15 February 2007
Description: Erection of 2 No. detached dwellings

Ref: 14/00907/NOT Decision: PERTEL Decision Date: 22 August 2014
Description: Notification of intention to install network rail communications equipment

RELEVANT POLICIES:  In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central 
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted 
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/ 
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

Suggested conditions

To follow

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 3a



MP .75

9

7

.

5

m

St Johns

E

l

l

e

r

B

r

o

o

k

D

e

f

8

1

3

1

2

1

4

2

1

1

6

3

0

4

4

a

6

0

2

5

3

7

4

8

4

4

4

6

4

6

a

W

E

S

T

H

O

U

G

H

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

1

5

1

3

2

2

K

I

N

G

S

L

E

A

95.1m

4

5

6

6a

C

S

Charnock

Heath

C

H

A

T

S

W

O

R

T

H

C

O

U

R

T

2
0

1

9

P

i

p

e

l

i

n

e

D

e

f

4

4

46

7

1

5
4

5

8

7

7

8

1

8

3

5

2

6

0

6

4

6

8

7
2

7

4

7

8

8

0

B

A

R

N

 
V

I
E

W

4

5

0

4

8

3

1

7

101.5m

3
1

2
9

5
8

4
8

3
6

6

3

4

1

1
0

60

1

2

M

E

R

C

E

R

 

C

O

U

R

T

C

H

A

T

S

W

O

R

T

H

COURT

1

6

14

12

2

6

1
8

2
2

2
1

9

1

1

1

T

H

E

1

2

1
4

1

6

1

9

2

0

D

A

N

E

S

W

A

Y

H

A

M

L

E

T

R
A

W

L
IN

S
O

N
 L

A
N

E

2

1

5

1

S

P

R

I
N

G

F

I
E

L

D

 
G

A

R

D

E

N

S

Project Description

Project Address:

Client:

Drawing Title:

Drawing Number: Revision:

Mr. E. Joynt

Location plan

16009/2-06

Drawn By: Date:

Checked By: Date:

Drawing Status:

Rev. Date Info.

Drawing Scales @ A1:

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all engineers and

specialists drawings along with all relevant specifications.

All permissions & approvals are to be obtained prior to

commencement of any works on site.

All gridlines, dimensions, building lines, etc. are to be checked

carefully on site prior to the commencement of any works.

All workmanship and materials shall comply with current Building

Regulations, British Standards, Codes of Practice and N.H.B.C.

requirements.

All materials shall be fixed, applied or mixed in accordance with

manufacturer's instructions or specifications and all materials shall be

suitable for their purpose.

Dimensions are not to be scaled from this drawing.

Any discrepancies between the information given by engineers and

other specialists must be brought to the attention of the designer prior

to the commencement of any works.

Where it is required that inspection be made by the local authority

this shall be arranged by the contractor to suit their programme.

The contractor shall comply with the health and safety requirements

as set out by the CDM Regulations, The Health and Safety Executive.

Prior to commencing work the contractor shall carry out an internal

and external condition survey of the existing building and shall take

into account everything necessary for the proper execution of the

works, to the satisfaction of the 'Inspector' whether indicated on the

drawing or not.

17.02.2017

1:50 / 1:750

Planning Application

17.02.2017

Land adjoining 3 Mercer Court

Heath Charnock

PR7 4EE

7No. New Dwelling Houses

Land adjoining No.3 Mercer Court

Location Plan (1:1250)

N

Total area of land edged red

= 0.498 hectares

Agenda Page 11

Agenda Item 3a



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – 18/00560/FUL

Validation Date: 15 August 2018

Ward: Eccleston And Mawdesley

Type of Application: Full Planning

Proposal: Siting of cabins to provide temporary office accommodation for use during the 
construction of previously approved offices.

Location: Sarscow Farm Sarscow Lane Eccleston Leyland PR26 8LS 

Case Officer: Mr Iain Crossland

Applicant: Mr Roberts

Consultation expiry: 5 September 2018

Decision due by: 7 November 2018

RECOMMENDATION

1. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.

SITE DESCRIPTION

2. Sarscow Farm, historically known as Little Sarscow, was at one time a quite substantial farm 
complex set in open countryside within the Green Belt. The wider planning unit includes the 
farm house and several agricultural buildings situated in a close grained cluster at the end of 
Sarscow Lane that leads to the site from Southport Road.

3. Sarscow Lane itself is a single-track private lane that serves Sarscow Farm, the agricultural 
land on either side and to the south of it and a limited number of other properties. It is lined 
by a significant number of mature trees that are the subject of a Tree Preservation Order 
(TPO). Drainage ditches variously line one or both sides of the lane at different points along 
its length, which restricts the carriageway width within these areas.

4. It is noted that the older barns clustered around the farm house were subject to a recent 
application for planning permission for a change of use to offices (application ref. 
17/01046/FUL). This was approved in March 2018. 

5. The application site comprises an area of rough hardstanding to the east of the older barn 
buildings that have planning permission to be converted to offices. 

6. There are no immediate neighbours to the site, the nearest being the property known as 
Oakfield located approximately 360 metres to the north, or Butterfly Hall that is 
approximately 380 metres to the north west. A public footpath, no.2, runs in a north to south 
direction along Sarscow Lane.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

7. This application seeks planning permission for the siting of six cabins to provide temporary 
office accommodation for use during the conversion of previously approved offices. The 
cabins measure 12m by 3m each and are supported on concrete blocks.

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 3b



8. It is noted that the cabins have recently been installed on site.

REPRESENTATIONS

9. Representations in objection have been received from the occupiers of 2 addresses. These 
relate to the following issues:
 The cabins would be located in the Green Belt.
 Work has already commenced.
 No temporary time limit has been provided.
 Impact on the character of the area.
 No details of drainage.
 Damage to trees and hedges.
 Encroachment through the extension of hardstanding.
 Impact on highway safety.
 No very special circumstances.

CONSULTATIONS

10. Eccleston Parish Council: No comments have been received.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of development
11. The application site is located within the Green Belt, and the proposed development would 

result in the siting of three cabins on a temporary basis. The Framework states that the 
construction of new buildings should be regarded as inappropriate in the Green Belt, except 
in a limited number of specific circumstances.

12. National guidance on Green Belt is contained in Chapter 13 of the Framework, which states:

133. The Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of 
Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the 
essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.

134. Green Belt serves five purposes:

 to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
 to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
 to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
 to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
 to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban 

land.  

143. Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not 
be approved except in very special circumstances.

144. When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure 
that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ 
will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and 
any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.

145. A local planning authority should regard the construction of new buildings as 
inappropriate in Green Belt. Exceptions to this are:

a) buildings for agriculture and forestry;
b) the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a 
change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and 
allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 3b



c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate 
additions over and above the size of the original building;
d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not 
materially larger than the one it replaces;
e) limited infilling in villages;
f) limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the 
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and
g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land, 
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:
‒ not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing 
development; or
‒ not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the development 
would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an identified affordable 
housing need within the area of the local planning authority.

13. The application site benefits from a planning permission to change the use of former barns 
to offices, although this has not yet been implemented. There are no buildings or structures 
in situ on the part of the site where it is proposed that the cabins would be located. The 
proposed development does not fall within any of the exceptions to inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt set out at paragraph 145 pf the Framework. The proposed 
development must, therefore, be considered inappropriate, which is harmful by definition, 
and to which substantial weight must be attached.

14. There would be some engineering works required to stabilise the land on which the cabins 
would be sited. Paragraph 146 c) of the Framework sets out that engineering operations are 
not inappropriate in the Green Belt provided that they preserve its openness and do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land within it.   

15. As it has been established that the development results in definitional harm to the Green 
Belt, through the siting of the cabins, any other harm caused by the development must also 
be considered and added to the definitional harm. 

16. There are five purposes of the Green Belt as set out in the Framework and detailed above.

17. Considering each in turn:

 Purpose 1 (to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas) 
The application site is located away any large built up areas and would not, therefore, 
contribute to sprawl.

 Purpose 2 (to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another) 
The development of the site would not result in neighbouring towns merging into one 
another. 

 Purpose 3 (to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment) 
The proposed development would result in a degree of encroachment into the countryside, 
albeit on a temporary basis. 

 Purpose 4 (preserve the setting and special character of historic towns) 
The site is not located within or near to a historic town, and the building is not located within 
the setting of any listed buildings.

 Purpose 5 (to assist in urban regeneration by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 
other urban land)

It is not considered that there would be any harm to this purpose.

18. On the basis of the above it is considered that there is other harm to the Green Belt from 
encroachment into the countryside.

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 3b



19. As the development results in definitional harm to the Green Belt, in addition to other harm, 
there would have to be very special circumstances to justify the grant of planning permission 
that would outweigh this harm.

Appearance and visual impact
20. The proposed cabins would be low level structures of utilitarian appearance. The siting of 

the cabins would be to the east and rear of the farm buildings. As such only glimpses of the 
cabins would be possible from Sarscow Lane to the west. The cabins would be located 
some 450m from the main highway at Southport Road to the north, therefore, there would 
be limited visibility from public areas. The scale and siting of the cabins are such that there 
would be a limited impact on the appearance of the site, given the siting close to but behind 
the cluster of existing farm buildings.  

21. On the basis of the above the proposed development would have a limited impact on the 
appearance of the site and character of the area. In addition the visual impact would be 
limited.
    

Impact on neighbour amenity
22. The proposed development would be located some considerable distance from any 

residential properties. As such there would be no impact on amenity from the physical 
presence of the cabins themselves. The use of the cabins is linked to the conversion of the 
agricultural buildings to offices and, therefore, any disturbance resulting from their use would 
reflect that which has already been accepted through planning permission 17/01046/FUL for 
the change of use to offices. The use of the cabins would cease once the offices become 
occupied and, therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would not result in 
any greater impact on amenity than has already been approved on the site.

Trees and hedgerows
23. Sarscow Lane is a narrow tree lined country lane that supports a public right of way linking 

Southport Road with a network of footpaths north of the River Yarrow. The trees along 
Sarscow Lane are mature and form an integral part of the character of the lane and public 
right of way that it provides. The trees are subject to a group Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 
Chorley BC TPO 1 (Eccleston) 2018. 

24. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that proposed for development 
should not have a detrimental impact on important natural habitats and landscape features 
such as historic landscapes, mature trees, hedgerows, ponds and watercourses. In some 
circumstances where on balance it is considered acceptable to remove one or more of these 
features then mitigation measures to replace the feature/s will be required either on or off-
site.

25. Policy BNE10 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 deals more specifically with trees and 
hedgerows and states Proposals that would result in the loss of trees, woodland areas or 
hedgerows which make a valuable contribution to the character of the landscape, a building, 
a settlement or the setting thereof will not be permitted. 

26. Policy 10 goes on to state that replacement planting will be required where it is considered 
that the benefit of the development outweighs the loss of some trees or hedgerows.

27. It is noted that the trees along Sarscow Lane were recently protected through the making of 
Chorley BC TPO 1 (Eccleston) 2018 and that this group TPO was used to protect the trees 
as they were considered to have landscape significance in this location, high public amenity 
value to those users of Sarscow Lane and that they were under threat from potential 
development. Given that the TPO was made recently it is not considered that the 
circumstances resulting in the TPO have changed and, therefore, the trees remain worthy or 
protection.

28. The trees and hedgerow contribute positively to the character of the lane and landscape in 
this location, and in doing so provide public amenity as they are highly visible along the lane 

Agenda Page 16 Agenda Item 3b



and right of way. Works to any trees in order to make way for the cabins to be transported 
onto the site would, therefore, have an impact on the character of the area.

29. The applicant was requested to provide some information to demonstrate that the units 
could be transported onto the site without damaging protected trees, or to identify any 
impact upon the trees. The applicant carried out a mock up exercise to show that the cabins 
could be transported safely down Sarscow Lane without damaging any protected trees. This 
demonstrated that there was not enough room to fit them down the lane on a standard trailer 
so this was adjusted to prove that it was possible on a low loader.

30. In the meantime the cabins have been transported onto the site without using the low-loader 
trailer, which has caused damage to branches and boughs of protected trees and apparent 
remedial works to prune the affected trees, without consent. This is being addressed by the 
Council’s enforcement team.

31. As the cabins are now in situ and the damage to the trees has already occurred, any grant 
of planning permission for the siting of the cabins would not, therefore, result in any further 
harm to hedgerows or trees protected by TPO’s.  

Highway safety
32. The site is accessed via Sarscow Lane, which connects with Southport Road to the north. 

The proposed development would facilitate the relocation of a business from its present 
premises to the application site where planning permission has been granted to convert the 
existing farm buildings to offices (application ref. 17/01046/FUL). This previous consent was 
approved on the basis that passing places should be constructed to 4 locations along 
Sarscow Lane, including at the junction with Southport Road. Lancashire County Council 
Highways (LCC) raised no objection to the previously approved scheme in highway safety 
terms. The proposed cabins would in effect provide the same use and accommodation as 
the approved offices and, therefore, the highway impact would be similar. On the basis that 
the passing places are now in situ it is, therefore, considered that the proposed impact on 
highway safety is acceptable. 

33. In consideration of the parking standards set out in the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 the 
proposed cabins would result in 8 spaces being required for the proposed use. Given the 
areas of hardstanding at the site it is considered that the required parking levels could be 
easily accommodated in addition to any parking and turning areas required throughout the 
duration of the conversion works. 

Green Belt balancing exercise
34. It has been established that there is definitional harm to the Green Belt as the development 

is inappropriate development in the Green Belt and there would be other harm through 
encroachment.

35. With a view to demonstrating very special circumstances the applicant has set out the 
following;

 Due to the conversion works taking place and financing the growth of the company we 
simply cannot afford to take on a 12-36 month tenancy on a facility that is similar to the 
one we have spent over £1m on. We are being evicted from our offices tomorrow and 
without the cabins being granted temporary use for a period of 18 months, 18 people 
would be out of a job and we would not have anywhere to run our company from. There 
are no offices locally that we can move into on Monday as the legal process would take 
much longer than a week to ensure we are adequately protected, and we would be tied 
in for a much longer period than we would like thus resulting in further expenditure that 
puts the company in jeopardy.

 The disruption that this would cause is unthinkable as we would lose staff and would 
probably have to fold the company putting 70+ people out of work. We are looking to the 
council to help us with this, and grant us temporary use. Once the barn is finished the 
cabins will be removed from the farm and sold thus returning it as it was. Relocating a 
business is extremely expensive and disruptive, and can result in losing key staff so we 

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 3b



need to keep our movements to a minimum to ensure the financial stability of our 
company.

 Town and Country Vibro had been instructed to vacate their existing offices by 30th 
September 2018.

 We believe that we will have the works completed on the barn in around 18 months, and 
are starting work on it imminently and will remove the cabins when work is complete on 
the barns.

36. The circumstances put forward by the applicant in support of the application are essentially 
related to the viability of the business. Planning permission has been granted for the change 
of use of buildings at Sarscow Farm to offices. It is the intention of Town and Country Vibro 
that these buildings would become the administrative base of the business. The business 
was until recently based elsewhere in the borough, however, with the approval of the use at 
Sarscow Farm the business is planning to relocate following the necessary conversion 
works. In the meantime the lease arrangements have come to an end at the previous 
offices, and the cost of making alternative rental arrangements would clearly have a serious 
impact on the viability of the business whilst investment is being made in the conversion 
works and relation of the business. This prompted the business to consider the cheaper 
alternative of temporary cabins on-site, whilst the conversion works are underway.

37. The cabins themselves can be sited inconspicuously on the site and would be a temporary 
impact that could be alleviated once the conversion works had been completed. A condition 
could be attached to any grant of planning permission requiring their removal within a 
specific time limit.

 
38. The urgency with which the cabins were installed on site relates to the termination of the 

company’s lease on their previous offices. Although this precedes the determination of this 
application the applicant and business are aware of the risk in doing so without planning 
permission but have done so in response to the situation that the business finds itself in. 

39. Given that the impact of the proposed development would be temporary and linked to the 
conversion of the farm buildings to offices as previously approved, it is considered that the 
risks to the viability of the business amount to the very special circumstances required to 
overcome the temporary harm to the Green Belt, which can be alleviated within a fixed 
timescale.
 

40. It is, therefore, considered that the matters set out above when taken together amount to the 
very special circumstances required to overcome the definitional harm to the Green Belt and 
other harm through encroachment. 

CONCLUSION

41. The proposed cabins providing temporary office accommodation are inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt. The design and siting of the buildings is appropriate and 
there would be no visual harm arising from its siting. It is considered that in this instance 
there are very special circumstances to overcome the definitional harm to the Green Belt 
and other harm. It is, therefore, recommended that the application be approved subject to 
conditions.

RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE

Ref: 74/00290/S53 Decision: SEC53              Decision Date: 8 July 1974
Description: Use of Building as Dwelling

Ref: 92/00070/FUL Decision: REFFPP Decision Date: 16 April 1992
Description: Infilling of ditches and extension to farm yard

Ref: 94/00335/AGR Decision: PAAGR             Decision Date: 18 May 1994
Description: Application for agricultural determination for general purpose agricultural 
building

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 3b



Ref: 17/00239/FUL Decision: PERFPP Decision Date: 4 May 2017
Description: Conversion of existing barn to dwelling including part demolition, new 
extensions and external works.

Ref: 17/01046/FUL Decision: PERFPP Decision Date: 6 March 2018
Description: Change of use of barn from agriculture to offices (use class B1), retention of 
farm house for residential (use class C3), retention of barns for agricultural use, provision of 19 
parking spaces for use by office staff, and alterations to Sarscow Lane, to create 3 no. passing 
places.
Ref: 18/00521/FUL Decision: REFFPP Decision Date: 12 September 2018
Description: Change of use of existing agricultural buildings to storage of plant and 
machinery in association with a groundwork contractors and alterations to Sarscow Lane, 
involving the construction of 4 no. passing places.

RELEVANT POLICIES:  In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central 
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted 
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/ 
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

Suggested conditions

To follow 

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – 18/00586/FUL

Validation Date: 27 June 2018

Ward: Chorley South East

Type of Application: Full Planning

Proposal: Erection of 4no. dwellings with associated parking and additional parking for 
65 and 67 Bolton Road

Location: Land A At The Rear Of 63 And 67 Bolton Road Chorley  

Case Officer: Mr Iain Crossland

Applicant: Mr Mark Brennan

Agent: Mr Chris Weetman

Consultation expiry: 5 October 2018

Decision due by: 7 November 2018

RECOMMENDATION

1. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions and a Section 
106 Obligation to secure the provision of a commuted sum for the provision of new play 
equipment at Tatton Recreation Ground.

SITE DESCRIPTION

2. The application site comprises land to the rear of 65 and 67 Bolton Road, which has 
functioned as gardens to these properties, although the land is somewhat removed from 
these dwellings and does not have the domestic appearance of a typical garden. The site is 
located within the core settlement area of Chorley in an area of predominantly residential 
development. The site is located between mature dwellings of a traditional design style 
facing onto Bolton Road and a more recent housing estate of traditional design style at 
Redwood Drive. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

3. The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 4no. dwellings with associated 
parking and additional parking for 65 and 67 Bolton Road. There would be two semi-
detached dwellings and two detached dwellings that would accessed from Redwood Drive. 

4. It is noted that the application originally sought planning permission for the erection of a 
building comprising nine apartments. The scheme was amended in September removing the 
apartment building and replacing with four dwellings.

REPRESENTATIONS

5. Representations have been received from the occupiers of 4 addresses raising the following 
issues in relation to the erection of four dwellings and associated parking arrangements: 
 Congestion of the public highway.
 Impact on highway safety.
 Disruption to residents during construction.

Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 3c



 Loss of protected trees.
 Loss of privacy and light.
 Lack of off street parking.
 Impact on drainage.
 Lack of infrastructure to support new development.
 Noise disturbance.

CONSULTATIONS

6. Lancashire Highway Services: Comment that the proposal is acceptable subject to 
amendments.

7. Greater Manchester Ecology Unit: Have no objection.

8. United Utilities: Have no objection subject to conditions.

9. The Coal Authority: Have no objection to the proposed development subject to the 
imposition of a condition.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of development
10. The National Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) states that housing applications 

should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. This means that development proposals that accord with the development 
plan should be approved without delay.

11. Policy 1(b) of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy states that growth and investment will be 
encouraged in Key Service Centres. Chorley is identified as a Key Service Centre and, 
therefore, the proposed development is in line with this policy. 

12. The land that is subject to this application has previously been used as gardens to 65 and 
67 Bolton Road, although the land does not appear to have been in any particular use for 
some time. One of the core principles of the Framework is that development should be 
focussed in locations that are sustainable. It is considered that the site is located in a 
sustainable location within easy access of amenities such as shops, schools, community 
facilities and public transport. The Framework also states that development in sustainable 
locations should be approved without delay.

13. As part of the application site has at some point been used as gardens then policy HS3 of 
the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 is relevant. This policy states that development within 
private residential gardens on sites not allocated for housing will only be permitted for:
(a) appropriately designed and located replacement dwellings where there is no more than 
one for one replacement.
(b) the conversion and extension of domestic buildings.
(c) infill development on gardens, which is classified as the filling of a small gap in an 
otherwise built up street frontage. This is typically a gap which could be filled by one or 
possibly two houses of a type in keeping with the character of the street frontage.

14. The proposed development does not comply with any of criteria (a) or (b) due to the nature 
of what is proposed. With regards to criteria (c), the site meets this definition to a greater 
extent as the site is a relatively small gap in an otherwise built up street frontage along 
Redwood Drive. The site is, however, capable of being filled by more than the two dwellings 
typical of an infill plot. The dwellings that are proposed reflect the character of the existing 
dwellings prevalent throughout of Redwood Drive, and would blend in to the character of 
Redwood Drive harmoniously.  

15. This is supported by paragraph 5.29 of the preamble to policy HS3, which states that when 
assessing applications for garden sites the Council will also have regard to the relationship 
of development to the surrounding character in terms of density, siting, layout, massing, 

Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 3c



scale, design, materials building to plot ratio and landscaping. The appearance and scale of 
the proposed dwellings would be similar to that of existing dwellings that can be seen 
throughout Redwood Drive. The layout would continue the pattern set by 51 to 47 Redwood 
Drive to the north west of the site and would fill the gap in development between 47 and 45 
Redwood Drive in a logical layout that would reflect the character of the locality. This can be 
achieved without harm to neighbour amenity as assessed below.

16. Policy HS3 includes the additional sustainability criteria, and the preamble describes that the 
Council will have regard to sustainability issues such as access to public transport, school, 
businesses and local services and facilities. In terms of this issue there are factors that 
weigh in favour of the proposal. The site is located in the settlement area of Chorley within 
walking distance of the Town Centre with a good level of accessibility to shops, schools and 
other services and amenities, public transport and local employment opportunities. 

17. The proposed development would not be contrary to the objectives that policy HS3 has 
been designed to achieve. On this basis the principle of the development is considered to 
be acceptable in this case, subject to other material planning considerations.

Impact on character and appearance of the locality
18. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be 

granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing 
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the 
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and 
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.

19. The site as it exists currently extends from the garden areas of 65 and 67 Bolton Road and 
comprises grass and some hardstanding in addition it is occupied by a timber outbuilding. 
There is also a protected tree to the south west side of the site. The land has not been used 
for some time and appears somewhat anomalous in the context of the surrounding area. It 
does not, therefore, reflect the character of the surrounding area and its retention would be 
of no particular benefit in terms of the character of the locality. 

20. The proposed development comprises four dwellings to be located on land to the rear of 65 
and 67 Redwood Drive. The dwellings would be arranged and positioned in line with 51 to 
47 Redwood Drive and would face onto Redwood Drive, which would have a positive impact 
in terms of creating an active street frontage and contributing to the character of the area in 
a consistent manner. The dwellings would be of a design and scale that would reflect the 
character of Redwood Drive and would sit comfortably within the fabric of the estate.

21. No landscaping or boundary scheme is included at this stage, however, this will form an 
important component as regards the details of the eventual development, and a condition is 
recommended to secure these details. In considering the landscaping of the eventual 
scheme it is considered that a soft boundary with Redwood Drive would be the most 
appropriate treatment in the context of the area. A native hedgerow would provide a suitable 
way of demarcating the site in a manner that contributes positively to the character of the 
area.

22. Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would not be harmful to the 
appearance of the site and character of the street scene and wider area. 

Impact on neighbour amenity
23. The proposed dwellings would continue the pattern of development set by 51 to 47 

Redwood Drive and would be positioned in line with these dwellings. As such the 
relationship between the existing dwelling at 47 Redwood Drive and proposed plot 1 would 
reflect current relationship in this row and would have an acceptable relationship with no 
unacceptable impact on light, outlook or privacy. 

24. The relationships between the proposed dwellings themselves meet with the Council’s 
interface guidelines and are considered to be acceptable.

Agenda Page 25 Agenda Item 3c



25. The proposed dwelling at plot 4 would be positioned perpendicular to 45 Redwood Drive, 
which is to the north east of the site, and as such would face this dwelling with views 
towards the rear garden at this property. The separation distance between the first floor 
windows to plot 4 and garden boundary at 45 Redwood Drive is approximately 11.5m, which 
is in excess of the Council’s interface guideline of 10m. It is, therefore, considered that there 
would be no unacceptable impact on the privacy of occupiers of 45 Redwood Drive due to 
the degree of separation. This separation would also prevent any unacceptable impact on 
light or outlook.

26. The proposed dwelling at plot 4 would have a side elevation facing the rear of dwellings at 
15 and 16 Rosewood Close. There would be no windows to habitable rooms facing these 
properties and plot 4 would be positioned to the north west of these dwellings. Plot 4 would 
be positioned approximately 12m from the main rear elevation of 15 Rosewood Close (the 
nearest property). As a result of the relative positioning and degree of separation there 
would be no unacceptable impact on the occupiers of 15 or 16 Rosewood Close through 
light, outlook or privacy.

27. The proposed dwellings would be positioned some considerable distance from dwellings 
that face Bolton Road to the rear of the application site. It is considered that there would be 
no unacceptable impact on the amenity of any of the dwellings facing Bolton Road or any 
other property.

28. The proposed dwellings would result in a use of the land that is compatible with surrounding 
residential properties and is not therefore considered to present a noise disturbance issue.

Highway safety
29. The proposed development would result in two, two bedroomed dwellings and two, three 

bedroomed dwellings. There would be adequate parking on site to meet the Council’s 
adopted parking standards in relation to these new dwellings. Access would also be enabled 
to dwellings fronting Bolton Road. This would reflect the current arrangement in relation 65 
and 67 Bolton Road, which have access through the site, but would also include access to 
the rear gardens at 63 and 69 Bolton Road. This element of the proposed development 
would not in itself require planning permission and is of benefit to the existing properties 
facing Bolton Road that currently depend on the limited access from Bolton Road. In 
addition parking spaces would be provided for the existing dwellings at 65 and 67 Bolton 
Road. This would alleviate parking pressures on Bolton Road and would be benefit to 
residents of Bolton Road and these properties in particular.

30. The number of vehicles accessing the site through the Redwood Drive and Beechwood 
Road from Bolton Road would be relatively low and would have a limited impact on the 
capacity of the highway network and upon the amenity of existing occupiers in this area. 
Although it is recognised that construction works in themselves can be disruptive for 
residents and can result inconvenience these impacts would be temporary and it is 
considered that the impacts can be managed. It is, therefore, recommended that a 
construction method statement is attached to any grant to planning permission.

Trees
31. There is an ash tree located near to the south east boundary of the site that is protected by 

a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). This tree is to be retained within the development and the 
applicant has submitted a tree report produced by a qualified arborist in support of the 
application. This report identifies the ash tree as being prominent and of value. It 
demonstrates that the tree would not be at risk from the proposed development subject to 
adequate precautions being taken to protect the retained trees as specified as long as the 
development is implemented in consideration of the arboricultural method statement. It is, 
therefore, recommended that an appropriate condition is attached to any planning approval. 
  

Public open space
32. In line with policy HS4 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 a contribution towards the 

provision or improvement of public open space (POS) would be required to address local 
needs. The Council’s agreed approach is to only seek contributions towards provision for 

Agenda Page 26 Agenda Item 3c



children/young people on developments of 10 dwellings or fewer.  There is currently a 
surplus of provision in Chorley South East Ward in relation to this standard and the site is 
within the accessibility catchment (800m) of an area of provision for children/young people. 
A contribution towards new provision in the ward is, therefore, not required from this 
development. However, there are areas of provision for children/young people within the 
accessibility catchment that are identified as being low quality and/or low value in the Open 
Space Study (Site: 1330.2 Tatton Recreation Ground Play Area (0.5284ha) low/high). A 
contribution towards improvements to these sites is therefore required from this 
development. The amount required is £134 per dwelling.

Community Infrastructure Levy
33. The Chorley CIL Infrastructure Charging Schedule provides a specific amount for 

development. The CIL Charging Schedule was adopted on 16 July 2013 and charging 
commenced on 1 September 2013. The proposed development will be a chargeable 
development and the charge is subject to indexation in accordance with the Council’s 
Charging Schedule. 

CONCLUSION

34. The proposed development would have the benefit of providing new housing in a 
sustainable location. The proposal would have no unacceptable detrimental impact on the 
character of the areas or the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. In addition there would be 
no unacceptable impact on highway safety. On the basis of the above, it is recommended 
that planning permission be granted.

RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE

Ref: 17/00748/FULHH Decision: PERFPP Decision Date: 22 September 
2017
Description: Conversion of existing attached side outhouse to kitchen/dining space involving 
the addition of a mono-pitched roof and elevational alterations.

Ref: 09/00070/OUT Decision: PEROPP Decision Date: 2 June 2009
Description: Outline application for the erection of three dwellings (renewal of outline 
planning permission 06/01145/OUT)

RELEVANT POLICIES:  In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central 
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted 
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/ 
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

Suggested conditions

No. Condition
1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date 

of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans: 

Title Drawing Reference Received date
Site plan and location plan 143/PL01/D 19 October 2018

Proposed plans and 
elevations

143/PL02/B 13 September 2018

Agenda Page 27 Agenda Item 3c



Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. Due to the proposed sensitive end-use (residential housing with gardens), the 
development should not commence until the applicant has undertaken an 
appropriate scheme of intrusive site investigations/gas monitoring and submitted to 
and had approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a report of findings 
arising from the intrusive site investigations/gas monitoring. The report should 
provide a scheme of remedial works/mitigation for approval and the development 
shall thereafter only be carried out following the remediation/mitigation of the site in 
full accordance with the measures stipulated in the approved report.

Reason: Coal mining legacy potentially poses a risk to the proposed development 
and that intrusive site investigation works, including ground gas monitoring should 
be undertaken prior to development in order to establish the exact situation 
regarding coal mining legacy issues on the site.

4. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for
the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority. 

Reason: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that 
the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work 
commences on site. 

5. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the approved 
scheme the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway 
improvement has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme 
details. 

Reason: In order that the traffic generated by the development does not 
exacerbate unsatisfactory highway conditions in advance of the completion of the 
highway scheme/works. 

6. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
ii. hours of operation (including delivers) during construction
iii. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
iv. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
v. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
vi. wheel washing facilities 
vii. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
viii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works

Reason: in the interests of highway safety and to protect the amenities of the 
nearby residents.

7. A scheme for the landscaping of the development and its surroundings shall be 
submitted prior to the erection of the superstructures of the dwellings hereby 
approved. These details shall include all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; 
detail any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course 
of development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted, 
their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped; and 
detail any changes of ground level or landform, proposed finished levels, means of 

Agenda Page 28 Agenda Item 3c



enclosure, minor artefacts and structures, including the appearance of any 
retaining structures. The scheme should include a landscaping/habitat creation 
and management plan, which should aim to contribute to targets specified in the 
UK and Lancashire Biodiversity Action Plans. Landscaping proposals should 
comprise only native plant communities appropriate to the natural area. The 
content of the plan should include elements to mitigate for loss of trees shrubs and 
bird nesting habitat.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details within the first planting and seeding seasons following the 
occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the 
sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size 
and species.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory landscaping scheme for the development is 
carried out to mitigate the impact of the development and secure a high quality 
design.

8. No tree felling, vegetation clearance works, or other works that may affect nesting 
birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless 
surveys by a competent ecologist show that nesting birds would not be affected.

Reason: Nesting birds are a protected species.

9. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, the proposed car 
parking and turning areas shall be constructed using permeable materials on a 
permeable base, or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard 
surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the boundaries of the 
property (rather than to the highway), unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent flooding.

10. Prior to the erection of the superstructures of the dwellings hereby approved 
samples of all external facing and roofing materials (notwithstanding any details 
shown on previously submitted plan(s) and specification) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works shall be undertaken 
strictly in accordance with the details as approved.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality.

11. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced full details of existing 
and proposed ground levels and proposed building finished floor levels (all relative 
to ground levels adjoining the site) shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, notwithstanding any such detail shown on 
previously submitted plan(s). The development shall be carried out strictly in 
conformity with the approved details.

Reason: To protect the appearance of the locality and in the interests of the 
amenities of local residents.

12. Prior to the erection of the superstructures of the dwellings hereby approved, full 
details of the alignment, height and appearance of all fences and walls and gates 
to be erected (notwithstanding any such detail shown on previously submitted 
plan(s)) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown 
in the approved details to bound its plot have been erected in conformity with the 
approved details. Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall have 

Agenda Page 29 Agenda Item 3c



been erected in conformity with the approved details prior to substantial completion 
of the development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development and to provide 
reasonable standards of privacy to residents.

13. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage 
scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any 
subsequent replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public 
sewerage system either directly or indirectly.

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in light of 
policies within the NPPF and NPPG.

14. Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management 
and maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:
a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory 
undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a resident’s management 
company; and
b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the 
sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage 
scheme throughout its lifetime.
The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan.

Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution 
during the lifetime of the development.

15. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected in 
accordance with British Standard BS 5837:2012 or any subsequent amendment to 
the British Standards.

Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained.

16. The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with the 
recommendations set out in the Arboricultural Method Statement prepared by GM 
Tree Consultants 21 May 2018 (Job Ref:1151).

Reasons: In the interests of safeguarding the protected trees.

17. All new dwellings are required to achieve a minimum Dwelling Emission Rate of 
19% above 2013 Building Regulations. 

Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new 
dwellings to be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the 
Deregulation Bill 2015 receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set 
conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent. However as Policy 
27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure energy efficiency reduction as 

Agenda Page 30 Agenda Item 3c



part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the environmental 
impact of the development.

18. Prior to the commencement of the development details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that each 
dwelling will meet the required Dwelling Emission Rate. The development 
thereafter shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new 
dwellings to be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the 
Deregulation Bill 2015 receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set 
conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent. However as Policy 
27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure energy efficiency reductions as 
part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the environmental 
impact of the development. This needs to be provided prior to the commencement 
so is can be assured that the design meets the required dwelling emission rate.

19. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until a SAP assessment (Standard 
Assessment Procedure), or other alternative proof of compliance (which has been 
previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) such as an Energy 
Performance Certificate, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority demonstrating that the dwelling has achieved the required 
Dwelling Emission Rate.

Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new 
dwellings to be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the 
Deregulation Bill 2015 receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set 
conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent. However as Policy 
27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure energy efficiency reductions as 
part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the environmental 
impact of the development.

20. Prior to the construction/provision of any services, a strategy to facilitate super-fast 
broadband for future occupants of the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall seek to ensure that upon 
occupation of a dwelling, either a landline or ducting to facilitate the provision of a 
super-fast broadband service to that dwelling from a site-wide network, is in place 
and provided as part of the initial highway works within the site boundary only. 

Reason: To ensure a sustainable form of development.

Agenda Page 31 Agenda Item 3c



This page is intentionally left blank



Drawn Date Scales Drawing No.

Project

104 Mossy Lea Road
Wrightington
Wigan
Lancashire
WN6 9RD T:07966 406501 E:chris@swiftbuildingdesign.co.uk

23/03/18

CJW 03/18 1:100 1:200 143/PL01/D
1 of 2@ A1

Swift
SWIFT BUILDING DESIGN

A Accesses shown to adjacent existing properties

www. .co.uk

N

Proposed Residential Development Land To Rear
of 65&67 Bolton Road, Chorley Lancashire
PR7 3AU

Location Plan

Proposed Site Plan

10 200 30 40 50 60m 1:1250

1 2 3 4 50 6 7 8 9 10m 1:200

Existing Site Plan
5 100 15 20 25m 1:500

1

2

65
65

67
67

Existing Garage To Be
Demolished Shown
Dashed

ACCESS

1

1
2

2

09/09/18B Redesigned to dwellings

3

4

12/09/18C Finished to planning standard

ACCESS

19/10/18D Plots 3 & 4 moved back 2m and drop kerb shown

A
genda P

age 33

A
genda Item

 3c



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – 18/00847/FUL

Validation Date: 6 September 2018

Ward: Wheelton And Withnell

Type of Application: Full Planning

Proposal: Erection of 4no. dwellings

Location: Land To The Rear Of 56 School Lane Withnell Fold Old Road Brinscall  

Case Officer: Mr Iain Crossland

Applicant: Mr Ahmed Habib

Agent: Mr Saghir Hussain

Consultation expiry: 5 October 2018

Decision due by: 1 November 2018

RECOMMENDATION

1. It is recommended that the planning application is approved subject to conditions.

SITE DESCRIPTION

2. The application site comprises an area of land to the north of the Oak Tree Inn, School 
Lane, Brinscall within the settlement area of the village. It is bound by Withnell Fold Old 
Road to the east, established residential properties fronting Queensway to the west and 
residential properties, the Oak Tree public house and a Post Office to the south. The site is 
roughly triangular in shape and extends to approximately 0.14 hectares. The topography of 
the site rises from Withnell Fold Old Road to the east up to the rear of the houses fronting 
Queensway with a change in levels of up to seven metres between the east and west of the 
site. The site is covered by ruderal vegetation including self-seeded trees and grasses, and 
is free of built structures. 

3. There is no existing vehicular access to the site, although there is an existing pedestrian 
access to the site from Withnell Fold Old Road via a set of steps. 

4. The site is in an area of mixed character with residential and commercial uses around the 
site with open spaces nearby. The properties on School Lane are predominately traditional 
buildings of local sandstone, although there are examples of red brick buildings also. Away 
from School Lane there are a variety of design styles and material finishes including red 
brick, brown brick and render.

5. It is noted that planning permission has been granted on two previous occasions for four 
dwellings on the site (refs. 16/00714/OUT and 17/00663/FUL), neither of which have been 
implemented, although both remain extant.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

6. This application again seeks planning permission for the erection of four detached dwellings. 
The dwellings would be split level in response to the site levels and would be of a modern 
design. Each dwelling would have individual vehicular access to Withnell Fold Old Road. 

Agenda Page 35 Agenda Item 3d



The stone wall adjacent to Withnell Fold Old Road would be removed and replaced with a 
new stone wall.  

REPRESENTATIONS

7. Representations in objection have been received from the occupiers of 7 addresses. These 
raise the following issues:
 Impact on the character of the area.
 Impact on highway
 Loss of parking on Withnell Fold Old Road.
 Impact on highway capacity during construction.
 Too many large properties not enough small ones.
 Impact on privacy, outlook and light to properties at Queensway.
 Impact on future residents from noise generated by the public house.
 Risk of subsidence.
 The Council should consider allotments for the site.
 Why was the originally approved development not progressed?

CONSULTATIONS

8. Withnell Parish Council: No comments have been received.

9. Waste & Contaminated Land: No objection subject to a condition.

10. Lancashire Highway Services: No objection subject to conditions.

11. United Utilities: No objection subject to a condition.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of development
12. The National Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) states that housing applications 

should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. This means that development proposals that accord with the development 
plan should be approved without delay.

13. Brinscall is identified as one of the Rural Local Service Centres and policy 1(e) of the 
Central Lancashire Core Strategy states that limited growth and investment will be 
encouraged in Rural Local Service Centres to help meet local housing and employment 
needs. The proposed development is considered to be small scale and targeted at meeting 
local housing needs in line with this policy. 

14. The application site is not designated within the local plan and does not appear to have a 
specific use. One of the core principles of the Framework is that development should be 
focussed in locations that are sustainable. It is considered that the site is located in a 
sustainable location within easy access of amenities such as shops, schools, churches and 
community facilities. The Framework also states that development in sustainable locations 
should be approved without delay.

15. The acceptability of the principle of residential development on this site has been 
established through the grant of two previous planning permissions, which remain extant.

Impact on character and appearance of the locality
16. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be 

granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing 
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the 
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and 
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.

Agenda Page 36 Agenda Item 3d



17. The proposed development comprises four split level detached dwellings to be located on 
land to the rear of 56 School Lane, Brinscall. The dwellings would be of a simple modern 
design style, and would be laid out in a linear format facing onto Withnell Fold Old Road. 
The dwellings would be sited at a higher level relative to the highway and would be set back 
with front garden areas and driveways. This arrangement would have a positive impact in 
terms of creating an active street frontage, and the setting back from the highway would 
prevent the proposed dwellings from appearing overly imposing.

18. The density of the development would be low, particularly in the context of the area, as 
nearby dwellings are largely terraced. The capacity of the site is, however, limited by its 
topography and the proposed development would provide larger family sized homes, which 
would make a valuable contribution to the housing stock in Brinscall.  

19. It is proposed that the dwellings would be faced in stone and red or buff brick with some 
timber cladding. They would also include small balconies in order to take advantage of the 
raised and open aspect. Although the properties on School Lane are predominately 
traditional buildings of local sandstone, there are examples of red brick buildings also. In 
addition to this, there are a variety of building design styles and material finishes away from 
School Lane including more modern designs and the use of red brick, brown brick and 
render finishes. Indeed, it is noted that the existing dwellings to the north west of the site are 
of a modern design and are faced in brown brick. There is no particular design style along 
Withnell Fold Old Road itself and, therefore, the use of a modern design and red or buff 
brick is considered to be acceptable in this instance, subject to a condition requiring details 
of the actual materials to be used to be approved. Furthermore, the dwellings would not be 
located in a prominent positon within the settlement.

20. There is a stone retaining wall along the boundary of the site with Withnell Fold Old Road. 
This is the only feature of character at the site, and although it is proposed to remove the 
existing stone wall, to facilitate the development, it would be replaced with a new stone wall 
and a wider footpath to Withnell Fold Old Road. This would help the development to reflect 
some of the character that does exist and would help the development to blend into the 
streetscape. 

Impact on neighbour amenity
21. The proposed dwellings would extend north of the existing dwellings at 46 and 48 School 

Lane and would be positioned at a higher level to these properties. As the proposed 
development would be to the north of these dwellings there would be no loss of direct light in 
relation to them. In addition, there would be no windows to habitable rooms in the proposed 
dwellings that would face these properties, thereby avoiding any impact on privacy. 

22. In relation to any potential impact on the outlook from 46 and 48 School Lane, the nearest 
proposed dwelling, plot 1, would not be directly visible from 48 School Lane as it would be 
set back from this dwelling. The proposed dwelling at plot 1 would be located approximately 
10m from 46 School Lane. There are windows to habitable rooms in this property facing the 
application site. Although the proposed dwelling at plot 4 would be visible from these 
windows, it is noted that the north facing windows in the ground floor of 46 School Lane 
already face a high stone retaining wall, which already impacts on the outlook from this 
property. Given that there would be no loss of light or privacy, it is considered that the 
proximity of the proposed dwelling at plot 4 would not be so harmful to the level of residential 
amenity currently enjoyed by the occupiers of this property to warrant refusal of the planning 
application. 

23. There are existing dwellings at 17 to 23 Queensway located to the north west boundary of 
the site and at a higher level relative to the application site. The proposed dwellings would 
be positioned at an angle to these properties, therefore, there would be no parallel facing 
windows. Although there would be windows facing the rear garden areas at 18 to 23 
Queensway these would be positioned at a lower level to the boundary fence and would 
have an adequate degree of separation, such that there would be no unacceptable impact 
on privacy. It is noted that there would be no windows in the rear facing first floor elevation 
to plot 4. 

Agenda Page 37 Agenda Item 3d



24. There is a change in levels through the site such that plots 3 and 4 would be sited at a 
higher level than plots 1 and 2 and would, therefore, be more visible from dwellings at 19 to 
21 Queensway by virtue of their proximity and height. The corner of plot 4 would be located 
approximately 8m from 21 Queensway at its nearest point, however, the proposed dwellings 
would be located at a lower level and their elevations would be angled away from the 
dwellings at Queensway. As such there would be no unacceptable impact on outlook. There 
would be some impact on light to the dwellings at 19 to 21 Queensway during the mornings 
as a result of the proposed development, however, the impact would not be significant as 
light levels would remain similar to the present situation from midday onwards.  

25. Given the difference in levels, the relative positioning and the degree of separation, it is 
considered that the proposed development would not result in an unacceptably detrimental 
impact on light, outlook or privacy in relation to the dwellings at 17 to 23 Queensway.

Highway safety
26. Planning permission was granted in 2017 on two occasions for the erection of four dwellings 

on the site. With each application the access was proposed via a single access drive to 
serve all four dwellings. The proposed development would involve the creation of direct 
accesses to Withnell Fold Old Road from each dwelling, along with curtilage parking 
provisions for the individual dwellings and an off-site work of footway widening to 2.0m along 
the site frontage. LCC Highways consider that this would be acceptable and raise no 
objection.

27. All four proposed dwellings would have 3no.bedrooms and would provide 3no. off street car 
parking spaces, which meets with the Council’s adopted parking standards. In addition the 
location is a sustainable one being close to shops, amenities and schools. 

28. It is noted that the current junction arrangement between Withnell Fold Old Road and School 
Lane is narrow and that visibility is not ideal, however, this is an historic arrangement and 
the junction has operated in this way for many years. In addition planning permission for four 
dwellings on this site has now been granted on two previous occasions. 

29. It is noted that the LCC Highways Officer considers that the proposal is acceptable and that 
the highway authority has no objection to the proposed development. Given the narrow 
width of the highway at Withnell Fold Old Road it is recommended that a construction 
method statement is required by condition.

  
Public open space
30. In line with policy HS4 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 a contribution towards the 

provision or improvement of public open space (POS) would be required to address local 
needs. The Council’s agreed approach is to only seek contributions towards provision for 
children/young people on developments of 10 dwellings or fewer. However, there is no local 
evidence of need to outweigh national policy in regards to open space and, therefore, a 
contribution is not required from this development.

CIL
31. The Chorley CIL Infrastructure Charging Schedule provides a specific amount for 

development. The CIL Charging Schedule was adopted on 16 July 2013 and charging 
commenced on 1 September 2013. The proposed development would be a chargeable 
development and the charge is subject to indexation in accordance with the Council’s 
Charging Schedule. 

Other matters
32. Risk of potential subsidence: It is recommended that a condition is attached to any grant of 

planning permission requiring details of the actual ground conditions and any mitigation 
measures that are required in order to implement the development. Ultimately it is the 
responsibility of the developer to ensure the safe development and occupancy of the site. 

33. Reduced parking opportunities on Withnell Fold Old Road due to creation of access:

Agenda Page 38 Agenda Item 3d



It is noted that any proposed access points onto Withnell Fold Old Road would reduce the 
length of highway that is currently available for on street car parking. There would, however, 
be remaining opportunities for on street parking following the creation of any vehicular 
access in this location. Although it is recognised that people currently park on the highway 
adjacent to the site, the availability of on street car parking is a benefit, which cannot be 
guaranteed and as such cannot be protected in relation to an application for planning 
permission. 

34. Impact on future residents from noise generated by the public house: It is considered that 
the noise impacts already exist in relation to existing residents and that the proposed 
development would be at no greater impact from noise from the public house. 

35. The Council should consider allotments for the site: No allotments have been proposed.

36. Why was the originally approved development not progressed? It is not known why the 
previously approved application was not progressed. This is not within the control of the 
Local Planning Authority.  

CONCLUSION

37. There would be no unacceptable detrimental impact on the appearance and character of the 
area or the amenity of neighbouring occupiers as a result of the proposed development. In 
addition, the development is located in a sustainable location and would not have an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety. On the basis of the above, it is recommended that 
planning permission be granted.

RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE

Ref: 16/00714/OUT Decision: PEROPP Decision Date: 20 January 2017
Description: Outline application for the erection of four dwellings and associated 
infrastructure (with all matters reserved)

Ref: 17/00663/FUL Decision: PERFPP Decision Date: 16 August 2017
Description: Erection of 4no. dwellings and construction of site access and associated 
infrastructure

RELEVANT POLICIES:  In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central 
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted 
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/ 
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

Suggested conditions

No. Condition
1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date 

of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans: 

Title Drawing Reference Received date
Location plan A1164(01)AP001 06 September 2018

Proposed site plan A1164(02)AP001 
Rev.E

11 October 2018

Agenda Page 39 Agenda Item 3d



Proposed boundary walls 
treatment plan

A1164(02)AP006 
Rev.D

11 October 2018

Proposed street elevations 
(levels)

A1164(02)AP003 
Rev.D

11 October 2018

Proposed bin store A1164(02)AP008 11 October 2018

Proposed Plans Type A
PLOT 1 & 2 - V2

A1164(03)AP001 
Rev.D

06 September 2018

Proposed Elevations Type A
PLOT 1 & 2 - V2

A1164(03)AP002 
Rev.C

06 September 2018

Proposed Plans Type B
PLOT 3 & 4 - V2

A1164(04)AP001 
Rev.E

11 October 2018

Proposed Elevations Type B
PLOT 3 & 4 - V2

A1164(04)AP002 
Rev.D

11 October 2018

Proposed Plans Type B
PLOT 3 & 4 - V2

A1164(04)AP001 
Rev.G

18 October 2018

Proposed Elevations Type B
PLOT 3 & 4 - V2

A1164(04)AP002 
Rev.F

18 October 2018

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. Due to the proposed sensitive end-use (residential housing with gardens), the 
development should not commence until the applicant has submitted to and had 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a Phase II ground investigation 
is recommended to determine more accurately the effect of the identified hazards 
on the development. Initially, this should include the following along with details of 
the necessary remediation measures:
 A window sampling, trial pits and possibly cable percussive borehole 

investigation to confirm ground conditions and collect samples for analysis.
 Chemical analysis of soils followed by risk assessment so that the risk to 

human health and controlled waters can be determined.
 Gas monitoring to assess the risk posed by ground gases.
 Geotechnical soils testing of the founding strata to assess its strength and 

suitable grades of buried concrete. 
 Confirmation of the presence of existing drainage is required.
 Slope stability assessment.
 Assessment of existing retaining walls.
 Investigation of surface water run-off from adjacent site.

The development shall thereafter only be carried out following the remediation of 
the site in full accordance with the measures stipulated in the approved report.

Reason: It is the applicant’s responsibility to properly address any land 
contamination issues, to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed end-use, in 
accordance with Paragraph 121 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(DCLG, 2012).

4. No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme for
the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway improvement
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority. 

Reason: In order to satisfy the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority that 
the final details of the highway scheme/works are acceptable before work 
commences on site. 

5. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until the approved 
scheme the construction of the site access and the off-site works of highway 
improvement has been constructed and completed in accordance with the scheme 

Agenda Page 40 Agenda Item 3d



details. 

Reason: In order that the traffic generated by the development does not 
exacerbate unsatisfactory highway conditions in advance of the completion of the 
highway scheme/works. 

6. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
ii. hours of operation (including delivers) during construction
iii. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
iv. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
v. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
vi. wheel washing facilities 
vii. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
viii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works

Reason: in the interests of highway safety and to protect the amenities of the 
nearby residents.

7. A scheme for the landscaping of the development and its surroundings shall be 
submitted prior to the erection of the superstructures of the dwellings hereby 
approved. These details shall include all existing trees and hedgerows on the land; 
detail any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course 
of development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and shrubs to be planted, 
their distribution on site, those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped; and 
detail any changes of ground level or landform, proposed finished levels, means of 
enclosure, minor artefacts and structures, including the appearance of any 
retaining structures. The scheme should include a landscaping/habitat creation 
and management plan, which should aim to contribute to targets specified in the 
UK and Lancashire Biodiversity Action Plans. Landscaping proposals should 
comprise only native plant communities appropriate to the natural area. The 
content of the plan should include elements to mitigate for loss of trees shrubs and 
bird nesting habitat.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details within the first planting and seeding seasons following the 
occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the 
sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size 
and species.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory landscaping scheme for the development is 
carried out to mitigate the impact of the development and secure a high quality 
design.

8. No tree felling, vegetation clearance works, or other works that may affect nesting 
birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless 
surveys by a competent ecologist show that nesting birds would not be affected.

Reason: Nesting birds are a protected species.

9. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, the proposed car 
parking and turning areas shall be constructed using permeable materials on a 
permeable base, or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard 

Agenda Page 41 Agenda Item 3d



surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the boundaries of the 
property (rather than to the highway), unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent flooding.

10. Prior to the erection of the superstructures of the dwellings hereby approved 
samples of all external facing and roofing materials (notwithstanding any details 
shown on previously submitted plan(s) and specification) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works shall be undertaken 
strictly in accordance with the details as approved.

Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality.

11. No dwelling shall be occupied until all fences and walls shown in the approved 
details to bound its plot, have been erected in conformity with the approved details. 
Other fences and walls shown in the approved details shall have been erected in 
conformity with the approved details prior to substantial completion of the 
development.

Reason: To ensure a visually satisfactory form of development and to provide 
reasonable standards of privacy to residents.

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting that Order, with or without modification), no windows other than those 
expressly authorised by this permission shall be inserted or constructed at any 
time in the rear elevation of the dwelling at plot 4 hereby permitted.

Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining property.

13. The dwelling at plot 4 hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
Drawing Numbers A1164(04)AP002 Rev.F and A1164(04)AP001 Rev.G received 
on 18th October 2018.   

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

14. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage 
scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any 
subsequent replacement national standards. In the event of surface water draining 
to the public surface water sewer, the pass forward flow rate to the public sewer 
must be restricted to 6.5 l/s. 

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in light of 
policies within the NPPF and NPPG.

15. Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management 
and maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:
a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory 
undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a resident’s management 
company; and
b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the 
sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage 

Agenda Page 42 Agenda Item 3d



scheme throughout its lifetime.
The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan.
Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution 
during the lifetime of the development.

16. All new dwellings are required to achieve a minimum Dwelling Emission Rate of 
19% above 2013 Building Regulations. 

Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new 
dwellings to be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the 
Deregulation Bill 2015 receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set 
conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent. However as Policy 
27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure energy efficiency reduction as 
part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the environmental 
impact of the development.

17. Prior to the commencement of the development details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that each 
dwelling will meet the required Dwelling Emission Rate. The development 
thereafter shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new 
dwellings to be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the 
Deregulation Bill 2015 receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set 
conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent. However as Policy 
27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure energy efficiency reductions as 
part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the environmental 
impact of the development. This needs to be provided prior to the commencement 
so is can be assured that the design meets the required dwelling emission rate.

18. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until a SAP assessment (Standard 
Assessment Procedure), or other alternative proof of compliance (which has been 
previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) such as an Energy 
Performance Certificate, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority demonstrating that the dwelling has achieved the required 
Dwelling Emission Rate.

Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new 
dwellings to be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the 
Deregulation Bill 2015 receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set 
conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent. However as Policy 
27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure energy efficiency reductions as 
part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the environmental 
impact of the development.

19. Prior to the construction/provision of any services, a strategy to facilitate super-fast 
broadband for future occupants of the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall seek to ensure that upon 
occupation of a dwelling, either a landline or ducting to facilitate the provision of a 
super-fast broadband service to that dwelling from a site-wide network, is in place 
and provided as part of the initial highway works within the site boundary only. 

Reason: To ensure a sustainable form of development.

Agenda Page 43 Agenda Item 3d



This page is intentionally left blank



MH CL

MH CL

MH CL

MH CL

MH CL

BT

GY

MH CL

GY KO

BT

GY

MH CL

MH CL
IL

FW

IL

IL

IL

IL

SW/FW

SW/FW

SW/FW

SW/FW

NOTE - MANHOLE PIPE SIZES  ARE ONLY INDICATIVE AND DO NOT REPRESENT ACTUAL DIAMETER

1
7

5
.0

1
7
5
.0

175.0

1
7

2
.5

1
7

2
.5

172.5

1
7
7
.0

17
6.

5

17
6.

0

1
7
6.

0

176.0

1
75

.5

1
7
5
.5

175.5

1
7

4
.5

1
74

.5

174.5

17
6
.5

17
6
.5

1
7

3
.5

173.5

173.5

1
7

1
.0

1
7

0
.5

1
7

1
.5

171.5

1
7

2
.0

172.0

172.0

1
7

3
. 0

1
7
3

.0

173
.0

1
7

4
.0

1
74

.0

174.0

P

P

TP

TP

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

EL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

RL

VP

RS

LP

LP

LP

SC

SCSCSC

SC

SC

SC

AG4
AG3

AG5

AG1

AG2

DR

DR

174.24

170.82

1
7
0
.
5
3

1
7
0
.
5
7

168.76

171.24

174.62

168.90

171.01
100mm

100mm

150mm
225mm

170.01

400mm

CULVERT

700mm WIDE 700mm WIDE

CULVERT

168.71

167.01

169.44

225mm

400mm

400mm

169.24

400mm

400mm

150

170.57

500mm

500mm

175.07

174.74

176.65

174.07

176.27

181.84

183.06

183.07

183.06

183.10

183.02

173.08

177.36

176.22

176.26

175.27

179.07

177.97

183.88

184.35

184.40

184.50

174.84

175.23

174.03

174.42

175.07

175.34

175.00

175.53

176.28

174.53

172.62

172.75

172.77

172.61

172.75

171.02

171.11

170.91

171.14

176.81

175.38

175.97

174.62

172.05

172.11

172.18

172.17

172.30

178.15

176.97

176.41

171.43

171.67

172.18

172.41

172.73

1
7
2
.
7
3

173.52

174.94

175.14

1
7
5
.
0
8

1
7
6
.
2
2

1
7
1
.
6
7

1
7
1
.
2
7

171.27

1
7
0
.
8
4

171.12

1
7
1
.
0
6

171.06

170.85

172.08

1
7
6
.
3
9

1
7
6
.
3
1

1
6
9
.
4
0

1
6
9
.
9
4

1
7
0
.
6
6

1
7
1
.
3
1

1
7
4
.
3
6

1
7
3
.
9
0

1
7
3
.
8
9

1
7
4
.
2
0

1
7
5
.
0
2

172.7
5

172.48

172.63

171.48
171.41

171.4
0

171.31

17
1.

23

171.21

171.22

168.83

1
6

9
.1

3

1
6

9
. 4

0

1
6

9
.8

4

1
7

0
. 4

4
1
7

0
.8

8

1
7

1
.4

0
1
7

1
. 9

4

1
7

2
. 5

0

1
7

3
.2

4

1
7

3 .9
1

17
4.6

5

1
7

3
. 1

4
1
7

2
.4

9

1
7

1
. 9

0

1
7

1
. 4

5

17
0
.9

9

17
0
.4

8

1
6

8
. 6

6
1
6

8
.7

2

1
7
4
.
4
1

1
7
3
.
8
4

1
7
3
.
6
3

17
3.
79

173.98

17
3.
79

1
7
6
.
3
6

1
7
5
.
9
9

17
6.
00

1
7
5
.
9
7

176.15

1
7
3
.
0
5

172.67

171.68

172
.38

1
7
2
.
4
7

1
7
2
.
6
1

17
2.
70

17
2.

44

172
.3

6

1
7
6
.
3
5

1
7
6
.
3
6

1
7
6
.
3
2

168.75

1
6
8
.
7
6

1
6
8
.
9
6

1
6
9
.
1
7

1
6
9
.
8
0

1
7
0
.
6
7

1
7
1
.
1
1

1
7
1
.
6
7

1
7
2
.
3
9

1
7
3
.
1
6

1
7
3
.
8
9

1
7
4
.
6
5

1
7
4
.
8
1

1
7
4
.
0
7

1
7
3
.
1
9

1
7
2
.
6
3

1
7
1
.
9
6

1
7
1
.
3
6

1
7
0
.
9
4

1
7
0
.
2
4

1
6
9
.
7
4

1
6
9
.
2
2

1
6
9
.
0
1

1
6
8
.
7
9

1
6
8
.
6
9

1
6
8
.
8
1

1
6
8
.
9
3

168.71

1
6
8
.
6
1

1
6
8
.
5
5

168.56

1
6
8
.
6
1

1
6
8
.
7
21
6
8
.
8
7

1
6
8
.
7
0

1
6
8
.
6
7

1
6
8
.
8
2

1
6
9
.
2
6

1
6
9
.
8
6

1
7
0
.
6
0

1
7
1
.
2
9

1
7
1
.
8
9

1
7
2
.
5
2

1
7
3
.
2
3

1
7
4
.
0
4

1
7
4
.
7
1

1
7
4
.
6
6

1
7
4
.
0
0

1
7
3
.
2
6

1
7
2
.
4
7

1
7
1
.
7
5

1
7
1
.
2
1

1
7
0
.
7
8

1
7
0
.
5
3

1
6
9
.
8
8

1
6
9
.
3
5

1
6
9
.
0
4

1
6
8
.
8
6

1
7
4
.
9
2

1
7
4
.
1
6

1
7
3
.
3
0

1
7
2
.
7
3

1
7
2
.
0
7

1
7
1
.
4
5

1
7
1
.
0
4

1
7
0
.
3
4

1
6
9
.
8
3

1
6
9
.
3
1

1
6
9
.
0
7

1
6
8
.
8
5

1
6
8
.
9
1

1
6
8
.
6
3

1
6
8
.
6
2

1
6
8
.
8
2

1
6
8
.
7
0

1
7
7
.
0
3

1
7
7
.
0
8

176.44 1
7
6
.
3
0

1
7
6
.
6
3

1
7
2
.
6
4

170.89

171.09
170.96

1
7
6
.
9
1

1
7
6
.
7
7

1
7
6
.
5
4

1
7
6
.
6
3

1
7
0
.
5
3

1
7
4
.
9
4

1
7
4
.
8
4

1
7
4
.
3
7

1
7
3
.
9
4

1
7
2
.
9
4

1
7
2
.
7
3

1
7
2
.
7
7

175
.04

1
7
4
.
5
8

172
.9

8

172.8
1

1
7
3
.
7
2

1
7
4
.
4
9

1
6
8
.
8
2

1
6
9
.
0
5

1
6
8
.
8
6

1
6
8
.
7
7

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

ToW

D
K

D
K

D
K

ToW

P/R Fence 1.4m

Stone Wall

D
ry

 S
to

n
e

 W
a
l l

Tarmac

Tarmac

Gravel

Rough Grass

Rough Grass

DS1.5

C/B 1m

C
/P

 2
.0

m

C
/B

 F
en

ce
 1

.8
m

C
/B

 F
en

ce
 1

.0
m

C
/B

 F
en

ce
 1

.8
m

Rough Grass

T
a

rm
a

c
 F

o
o

t p
a
th

T
a

rm
a

c
 F

o
o

tp a
th

B
rick

 W
a
ll

C/B 1.0m

Dry Stone Wall 1.5m

18

19

20

21

22

23

W
IT

H
N

E
L

L
 F

O
L

D
 O

L
D

 R
O

A
D

48

ST JOSEPH'S CLUB

THE OAK TREE

N
A

T
U

R
E

 T
R

A
IL

 N
U

R
S

E
R

Y

ToW

FFL
169.02

T
H

E
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

Q
U
EENSW

AY

173.4m 46

37

58

12

40

Works

39

P
O

1

48

Club

56

55

18

14

3

7

29

24

23

421400

421500

421400

421500

3
6
2
6
0
0

3
6
2
7
0
0

3
6
2
6
0
0

3
6
2
7
0
0

0 10 20  m

T
H

E
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

Q
UEENSW

AY

173.4m

33 35

60
46

37

1-3

58

12

28

40

Works

39

31

P
O

1

48

25a

Club

56

55

18

27

14

3
7

29

24

23

W
 I
 T

 H
 N

 E
 L

 L
  
  
F

 O
 L

 D
  
  
  
 O

 L
 D

  
  
R

 O
 A

 D

S C H O O L    L A N E

W
 I
 T

 H
 N

 E
 L

 L
  
  
F

 O
 L

 D
  
  
  
 O

 L
 D

  
  
R

 O
 A

 D

S C H O O L    L A N E

Client

No. Date Dwn Chk App Revision or reason for issue

Project Title

Scale / North Point

Drawing Title

Drawing Number Revision

Drawing Status

General Notes

Create It Studio Architects
Universal Square
Devonshire Street North
Manchester M12 6JH

The Architect shall have no responsibility for any use made of this document
other than for that which it was prepared and issued.

All dimensions should be checked on site. Do not scale from this drawing

To be read in conjunction with all other Consultant's drawings.

The Architect to be immediately notified of any discrepancies.

Copyright on this drawing retained by the Architect.

0161 974 6165
www.createitstudios.co.uk
info@createitstudios.co.uk

As indicated

A1164(01)AP001 -

Preliminary

Existing Location and Site Plans

Withnell Fold Old Road, PR6 8QP

Ahmed Habib

 1 : 500

Existing Site Plan
2

-     04/05/18   SA          SH   Initial Issue

1 : 1250

Site Location Plan
1

LEGEND

Site Boundary

A
genda P

age 45
A

genda Item
 3d



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – 18/00863/OUTMAJ

Validation Date: 12 September 2018

Ward: Adlington And Anderton

Type of Application: Outline Planning

Proposal: Outline application for residential development for up to 25 dwellings with all 
matters reserved save for access from Carrington Road.

Location: Land At Carrington Road Adlington  

Case Officer: Mr Iain Crossland

Applicant: Hollins Strategic Land

Agent: Paul Sedgwick

Consultation expiry: 8 October 2018

Decision due by: 7 November 2018

RECOMMENDATION

1. It is recommended that outline planning permission is refused for refusal for the following 
reason:

The proposed development would be located within an area of Safeguarded Land as 
defined by the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026.  The Council has a five year housing land 
supply as required by the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal therefore 
conflicts with policy BNE3 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026. It is not considered that 
the material considerations put forward in favour of the development are sufficient to 
outweigh the presumption against it.

SITE DESCRIPTION

2. The application site forms part of an area designated as Safeguarded Land within the 
Chorley Council Local Plan. The site is relatively flat, is previously undeveloped and consists 
of grassland with trees and shrubs around the perimeter and scrub is beginning to colonise 
the land. The site is relatively well contained, bordered by allotment gardens to the north 
east, residential properties to the south east and south west and there is a sand quarry 
present off the north western site boundary. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

3. The applicant is seeking outline planning permission for erection of 25 dwellings with all 
matters reserved apart from a new access from Carrington Road. The indicative layout plan 
and planning statement suggest a range of dwelling types and sizes, including larger homes 
and smaller dwellings which would include both market and affordable homes. The access 
strategy is to utilise Carrington Road, which currently runs up to the boundary of the site with 
the creation of two internal cul-de-sacs to access the dwellings. Open space provision is 
included in the development to the north west corner of the site and additional tree planting 
is also proposed. The existing hedgerow would be maintained where possible.

Agenda Page 47 Agenda Item 3e



4. The application is a resubmission of a previous application for the same development (ref. 
17/00411/OUTMAJ), which was refused in September 2017.

REPRESENTATIONS

5. 25 representations in objection have been received. These relate to the following issues:

 Additional vehicles using Park Road and Carrington Road which are already congested
 Access is near a school which is a safety concern 
 Green Belt land should be preserved along with the wildlife it supports 
 The land is safeguarded until 2026
 One exit is not sufficient for 25 houses
 There are other more suitable sites in Adlington
 Noise, dust, highways and vibration impacts during construction work
 Structural integrity of the bridge over the canal, including heavy trucks during  

construction works
 Pressure will be added to local infrastructure, such as the schools and health services
 Loss of pasture land and trees
 There is a pipeline running through the site which requires a stand-off meaning a section 

of the site will not be able to be developed
 Inadequate water infrastructure
 Impact on wildlife
 The information in the Transport Statement is misleading with regards to level of 

movements and public transport
 Impacts upon privacy and overshadowing 
 Visual impact
 Surface water drainage

CONSULTATIONS

6. The Coal Authority: Have no objection.

7. Canal & River Trust: Have no objection.

8. Environment Agency: Have no objection.

9. Greater Manchester Ecology Unit: Have no objection.

10. Regulatory Services - Environmental Health: Have no objection.

11. Waste & Contaminated Land: Have no objection subject to a suitable condition.

12. Lancashire Highway Services: Comment that the development is considered acceptable in 
principle from a highways perspective.

13. Lead Local Flood Authority: Have no objection subject to conditions.

14. United Utilities: Have no objection subject to a suitable condition.

15. Lancashire County Council (Education): Have no objection subject to a contribution to 
primary school places in the local area.

16. Adlington Town Council: objects to this application for the following reasons:
The site is allocated as Safeguarded Land in the Chorley Local Plan
 The only access to the site is via Park Road. All traffic to the lower end of Adlington 

uses this route in addition to the vehicles accessing Adlington Primary School. As a 
result there are often problems with access and parking along much of the road.

 All traffic using Park Road must use the canal bridge. Residents have previously raised 
concerns that the bridge is at its full capacity and is showing signs of stress related 

Agenda Page 48 Agenda Item 3e



damage near to the Bridge Inn, however Lancashire County Council reports that this 
has now been checked for safety. The Town Council has recently raised concerns with 
the Highways Authority regarding emergency access to this section of the village as any 
incident near to the bridge can block off access completely.

 Adlington Primary schools are already reaching capacity and the Lancashire County 
Council Draft School Place Provision Strategy now predicts a shortfall of 94 primary 
school places in the Adlington/Rivington area in the next five years. All secondary 
schools are outside Adlington.

 Serious flooding problems were experienced by residents of Lower Adlington in winter 
2015 and the building of additional houses is likely to exacerbate the existing drainage 
problems

 Residents adjacent to the site report the use of its old and thick hedgerows by a variety 
of bird species and hedgehogs. They also report that the nearby sand quarry has used 
“newt nets” indicating the presence of one or more species of newt, and bats have been 
seen in the area. The ecological survey included with the application took place in 
October, which is out of season for many of these animals, and is now over two years 
old, giving time for new species to have moved in.

 The location of the site is not well served by public transport, as there is no regular bus 
service to Lower Adlington 

 Any building work in this location would cause serious disruption to existing residents as 
the access roads are unsuitable for heavy vehicles.

In addition, residents attending a meeting of the Town Council where the previous 
application was discussed highlighted some major inaccuracies included in the application 
as follows:
 Traffic measurements given assume that there would be traffic movement only at “peak 

time” and that each household would have only one car. Existing houses in the area 
often have 2 or more cars, and the assessment does not take into account the lack of 
public transport, or the journeys which would need to be taken by local residents to 
access secondary schools or youth facilities.

 The report overstates the availability of public transport, quoting figures for bus and train 
services which relate only to a short time each day. The regular train service provides 
only one train per hour in each direction, and the bus service is occasional. 

 The Flood Risk Assessment gives a “low probability” of flooding on the site although it is 
described in the Ecological Survey as including marsh and a pond which has not always 
been a feature of the field.

 A mains water pipe runs through the site which residents are aware is subject to a 5m 
building exclusion zone. The plans show houses built directly over this pipe.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

17. The northern tip of the site identified as being within the Green Belt. The remainder of the 
site is located on land safeguarded for future development needs, as defined in policy BNE3 
‘Areas of Land Safeguarded for Future Development Needs’ of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 
– 2026.  This application site forms part of a wider parcel known as ‘North of Bond’s Lane, 
Adlington’, policy BNE3.3.

18. Policy BNE3 the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that development other than that 
permissible in the Green Belt or Area of Other Open Countryside (under policy BNE2) will 
not be permitted on Safeguarded Land. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to policy BNE3.

19. Policy BNE3 the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 is in accordance with paragraph 139 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) which states that local planning 
authorities should “where necessary identify in their plans areas of safeguarded land 
between the urban area and the Green Belt, in order to meet longer term development 
needs stretching well beyond the plan period” and “make clear that the safeguarded land is 
not allocated for development at the present time. Planning permission for the permanent 
development of safeguarded land should only be granted following a Local Plan review 
which proposes the development.”

Agenda Page 49 Agenda Item 3e



20. National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides clear details on the 
importance of the Green Belt and paragraph 143 states that: 

“inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be 
approved except in very special circumstances.”

21. Paragraph 144 of the Framework goes on to say ‘When considering any planning 
application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any 
harm to the Green Belt.  ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm 
to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the 
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.’

22. The application does not propose any built development within the Green Belt with this 
section of the site being proposed as an ecological enhancement area / open space. As 
such, there would be no impact upon the openness of the Green Belt and so this part of the 
proposal is not considered to be inappropriate in the Green Belt. 

23. The acceptability of the principle of developing the section of the site within the area of 
Safeguarded Land is not established by the development plan and the consideration is, 
therefore, whether there are any other material considerations that would outweigh the 
weight afforded to the development plan that is considered to carry significant weight.

Housing need

The Applicant’s initial case

24. The applicant’s case argues that the Council’s housing requirement is based on out of date 
information and the Council do not have a Framework compliant housing requirement. As a 
result they argue that the Council are unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable 
housing sites and the application should fall to be considered under paragraph 11 of the 
Framework, which sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development. It states 
that where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date 
planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in 
the Framework taken as a whole.

The Council’s case

25. The Council do not believe that the adopted housing land supply policies set out in Core 
Strategy Policy 1: Locating Growth, Core Strategy Policy 4: Housing Delivery and Local Plan 
Policy HS1: Housing Site Allocations are out of date. 

26. The Core Strategy was adopted in July 2012 and is framework compliant. The housing 
requirement in policy 4 was based on Regional Strategy housing figures, however, the Core 
Strategy Inspector considered the requirement sound and stated in his report “The amount 
of housing proposed, together with the policies, which seek suitable densities and high 
quality design and other relevant policies, accord with the Government’s policy, set out in 
the Framework, of delivering a sufficient amount and wide choice of high quality homes, 
widening opportunities for home ownership and creating sustainable, inclusive and mixed 
communities. As a result, everybody should have the opportunity of living in a decent home 
which they can afford in a community where they want to live. In these respects the Local 
Plan is sound.” 

27. The Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 was adopted in July 2015. Representations were 
received during preparation of the Local Plan that the housing requirement is not based on a 
robust, up to date objective assessment of need as required by the Framework. The 
Inspector concluded in her report that the Core Strategy target for 417 dwellings remained 
appropriate. She also stated “The Regional Strategy for the North West (RS) was revoked 
by the Secretary of State during the examination period. The impact of this on the 
soundness of the Plan, particularly regarding the justification for retaining the RS housing 

Agenda Page 50 Agenda Item 3e



and employment targets, was consulted upon and discussed at the hearing sessions. I 
conclude that no soundness issues have arisen as a consequence.”

28. It is noted that a recent appeal decision dated 30th November 2017 (Appeal Ref: 
APP/D2320/W/17/3173275) at Land at Pear Tree Lane, Euxton, dismissed an appeal 
against the decision of Chorley Council to refuse planning permission for outline planning 
permission for up to 165 dwellings on Safeguarded Land. The Inspector carried out an 
assessment of the Council’s five year deliverable supply of housing and concluded that the 5 
year housing requirement is 2037 dwellings, leading to a supply of 6.1 years. As such the 
Council could demonstrate a supply of housing land in excess of 5 years and relevant 
development plan policies for the supply of housing could be considered up to date as 
recently as 30th November 2017. 

29. Chorley Council believes that the Core Strategy policies are not out of date and comply with 
paragraph 67 of the Framework, however, it is accepted that it is timely to review the 
objectively assessed housing needs and housing requirements set out in the Core Strategy. 
The Central Lancashire authorities have undertaken a review of the objectively assessed 
housing needs and housing requirements set out in the Core Strategy – Central Lancashire 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment Sept 2017. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU 
Sept 2017) between the Central Lancashire authorities confirms the apportionment of the 
OAN between the local authorities in the Housing Market Area on the basis of housing 
requirements on the joint Core Strategy is also provided. 

30. As it is considered that the Core Strategy housing requirement is not out of date the Council 
can demonstrate a five year supply. The September 2017 Five Year Supply Statement for 
Chorley indicates a 8.6 year deliverable housing supply over the period 2017 – 2022. 
Therefore, there is no urgent requirement to release additional land for housing in the 
Borough. However, housing requirements are not a maximum and the Government requires 
local planning authorities to boost significantly the supply of housing. Proposals for 
additional housing will be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.

31. The Council considers that the adopted housing land supply policies are up to date, 
therefore, the proposal is contrary to the development plan. Paragraph 12 of the Framework 
states “Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development plan 
(including any neighbourhood plans that form part of the development plan), permission 
should not usually be granted.”

32. The applicant has identified a number of planning benefits of the proposed development. 
They have identified several social benefits including provision of market and affordable 
housing and public open space. They argue that the proposal will boost the supply of land 
for housing, make a valuable contribution to the five year housing supply and provide a 
balanced mix of dwellings. However, the Council considers that sufficient land has been 
allocated for housing in Adlington in the Local Plan in accordance with Core Strategy 
policies 1 and 4. In the Local Plan Inspector’s Report the Inspector stated “I conclude that 
the allocations are consistent with the development strategy of the Core Strategy and that 
they reflect the most sustainable locations for growth.” The Council is also able to 
demonstrate a five year supply.

33. With regards to affordable housing, the applicant argues that the provision of 35% (the policy 
requirement for this area is 30%) affordable homes should be regarded as a significant 
material benefit of the application. In accordance with Core Strategy policy 7, all residential 
developments in Adlington would be required to provide a minimum of 30% affordable 
homes, therefore, this is not considered a significant benefit especially given that affordable 
housing will be provided as part of development on other sites in Adlington that are allocated 
for housing in the Local Plan. There is no need for this development to come forward for 
affordable housing to be provided. 

34. The applicant is proposing some on site amenity green space within the Green Belt portion 
of the site which they also claim is a significant material planning benefit. It is not clear how 
much they are proposing. However, this open space is outside the development area within 

Agenda Page 51 Agenda Item 3e



the Green Belt and is not suitable in this location and will mainly serve the needs of the 
development itself, therefore, it is not considered a significant benefit. The requirement for 
the development is 0.04ha, and this would be required to be provided on-site.

35. The applicants also claim that the proposal will have economic benefits as housing 
development is a key component of economic growth. Benefits include the employment 
created during construction and the spending power of the additional residents. 
Consideration needs to be given to whether these benefits are significant given the existing 
amount of proposed housebuilding in Adlington.

36. Overall, it is not considered that these benefits are material considerations that outweigh the 
presumption against the proposal. The adopted housing land supply policies are up to date 
and the Council can demonstrate a five year supply. Therefore the proposal is contrary to 
the development plan. 

Affordable housing 

37. Core Strategy policy 7 sets down the approach to the delivery of affordable and special 
needs housing:

“Subject to such site and development considerations as financial viability and contributions 
to community services, to achieve a target from market housing schemes of 30% in the 
urban parts of Preston, South Ribble and Chorley …”
“Aside from rural exception sites the minimum site size threshold will be 15 dwellings (0.5 
hectares or part thereof) but a lower threshold of 5 dwellings (0.15 hectares or part 
therefore) is required in rural areas.”

38. The adopted Central Lancashire Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document 
provides additional information on the delivery of affordable housing, with paragraph 34 
stating:

“The size of development should not be artificially reduced to reduce or eliminate the 
affordable housing requirement as set out in the Core Strategy and at page 5 of this 
document, for example by sub-dividing sites or reducing the density of all of part of a site.”

39. This proposal should contribute towards the policy target of 30% of affordable housing 
(though it is noted that 35% is proposed as a material consideration in favour of the 
development) with 8 of the 25 proposed units being delivered as affordable units on site to 
meet this target requirement, and ensuring conformity with paragraph 49 of the SPD. This 
affordable housing would need to be secured through a Section 106 legal agreement if the 
application was approved. 

Design and amenity 

40. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be 
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing 
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the 
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and 
massing, design, orientation and use of materials. 

41. The appearance, scale, layout and landscaping aspects of the proposal do not form part of 
this outline application and would follow at any Reserved Matters stage. From the indicative 
layout plan submitted, it is considered that adequate residential curtilage would be provided 
with adequate space for parking and general amenity. It is considered that the dwellings 
could be designed without detriment to the appearance of the site, the character of the street 
scene or residential amenity from privacy, light or outlook. Nevertheless, this could only be 
fully assessed at Reserved Maters stage. 

42. With regards to amenity, during the construction phase, the Council’s Environmental Health 
Team has responded to state that it has no objection to the proposed development, however 

Agenda Page 52 Agenda Item 3e



if the application is approved the construction phase should comply with the Chorley Council 
document "Code of Practice for Construction and Demolition" which covers acceptable 
working hours, noise, vibration, dust and air pollution. Any impacts during the construction 
phase would be temporary and suitable mitigation measures could be imposed by planning 
condition.

43. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with policy 
BNE1 of the Local Plan. 

Highway safety

44. Policy ST4 ‘Parking Standards’ of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 requires that proposals 
for development will need to make parking provision in accordance with the standards set 
out in  Appendix A of the Local Plan. Appendix A identifies the Council’s minimum parking 
standards for new development. It is not currently known how many bedrooms would be 
provided within each dwelling. It is considered that there is sufficient room on-site for the 
provision of parking spaces to accord with policy ST4 at Reserved Matters stage and their 
provision could be required by planning condition. 

45. Highways and access issues have been the main concern expressed by residents during the 
consultation period. Lancashire County Council is the Local Highway Authority that manages 
and maintains the highway network in Lancashire and promotes safe travel and 
developments in accessible and sustainable locations within the county. As such, at certain 
stages in the planning process Chorley Council formally seeks the views of the County 
Council as a statutory consultee to assist in making an informed decision about proposed 
development. Lancashire Highway Services have noted that there are very few changes 
from the previously refused application. Apart from the proposal to reduce the widths of the 
footways along the extended section of Carrington Road from 2.0m to 1.8m, which LCC 
Highways would find unacceptable, there are no major changes as to warrant further 
highways response to that provided for the refused application. As such, the highways 
response dated 09/06/2017 to the refused application is still valid and should be used for the 
current proposal including the suggested conditions and the development is considered 
acceptable in principle from a highways perspective.

46. The current application is, however, seeking approval for access. As the proposed footways 
are less than the required standard width, an amended drawing should be submitted 
requiring widening of the footways to 2.0m. Without this it is not considered that satisfactory 
access can be achieved, an approval of the application in its current form is, therefore, not 
recommended by LCC Highways.

Public open Space

47. Policy HS4A of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 - Open Space Requirements in New 
Housing Developments explains that all new housing developments will be required to make 
provision for open space and recreation facilities, where there are identified local 
deficiencies in the quantity, accessibility or quality and/or value of open space and 
recreation facilities. The requirements for the proposed development are as follows:

Amenity Greenspace

Local Plan Policy HS4A sets a standard of 0.73 hectares per 1,000 population. 

There is currently a deficit of provision in Adlington in relation to this standard, a 
contribution towards new provision in the settlement is, therefore, required from this 
development. As the development is 10 or more dwellings the required amenity greenspace 
should be provided on-site. The amount required is 0.04 hectares. A maintenance cost of 
£17,500 is also required for a 10 year period if private maintenance is not proposed.
Provision for children/young people

Local Plan Policy HS4A sets a standard of 0.08 hectares per 1,000 population. 

Agenda Page 53 Agenda Item 3e



There is currently a deficit of provision in Adlington in relation to this standard; a 
contribution towards new provision in the settlement would normally be required from this 
development however there are no identified schemes for new provision, so no contribution 
is currently sought.

Parks and gardens

There are no parks/gardens within the accessibility catchment (1,000m) of this site 
identified as being low quality and/or low value in the Open Space Study, therefore, a 
contribution towards improving existing provision is not required.

Natural and semi-natural greenspace

There is no requirement to provide new natural/semi natural greenspace on-site within this 
development. 

The site is within the accessibility catchment (800m) of an area of natural/semi-natural 
greenspace that is identified as being low quality and/or low value in the Open Space Study 
(site 1852 - Rear of Outterside Avenue), a contribution towards improving this site is, 
therefore, required. The amount required is £557 per dwelling.

Allotments

There is no requirement to provide allotment provision on site within this development. 

The site is within the accessibility catchment (10 minutes’ drive time) of a proposed new 
allotment site HW5.3 – Harrison Road, Adlington. A contribution towards new allotment 
provision is, therefore, required from this development. The amount required is £15 per 
dwelling.

Playing pitches

A Playing Pitch Strategy was published in June 2012 which identifies a Boroughwide deficit 
of playing pitches but states that the majority of this deficit can be met by improving existing 
pitches. A financial contribution towards the improvement of existing playing pitches is, 
therefore, required from this development. The Playing Pitch Strategy includes an Action 
Plan which identifies sites that need improvements. The amount required is £1,599 per 
dwelling.

THE TOTAL FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION REQUIRED FROM THIS DEVELOPMENT IS 
AS FOLLOWS:

Amenity greenspace = £17,500 if to be adopted by Council
Equipped play area = £0
Parks/Gardens  = £0
Natural/semi-natural  = £13,925
Allotments = £375
Playing Pitches  = £39,975
Total = £71,775

49. This would need to be secured through a Section 106 legal agreement if the application 
was approved.

Mineral safeguarding

Agenda Page 54 Agenda Item 3e



50. The site is located within a Mineral Safeguarding Area, covered by policy M2 of Lancashire 
County Council’s Site Allocation and Development Management Policies document. Policy 
M2 explains that planning permission will not be supported for any form of development that 
is incompatible by reason of scale, proximity and permanence with working the minerals, 
unless the applicant can demonstrate one of a number of criteria, as follows:

 The mineral concerned is no longer of any value or has been fully extracted. 
 The full extent of the mineral can be extracted satisfactorily prior to the incompatible 

development taking place. 
 The incompatible development is of a temporary nature and can be completed and the 

site returned to its original condition prior to the minerals being worked. 
 There is an overarching need for the incompatible development that outweighs the 

need to avoid the sterilisation of the mineral resource. 
 That prior extraction of minerals is not feasible due to the depth of the deposit. 
 Extraction would lead to land stability problems. 

51. The applicant has submitted a sufficiently detailed Minerals Resource Assessment which 
concludes the following:

 The sand and gravel deposits known to be present to the north at the existing sand 
and gravel quarry are not indicated to extend and be present at the proposed 
development site, which is shown to be underlain by glacial till/clay.

 The site has no indicated viable coal seams present.
 Sandstone extraction from depth is unlikely to be economically viable given the small 

nature of the site.
 The entire site falls within a 100m environmental buffer zone from the existing houses 

to the south and west.

52. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposal meets the criteria of policy M2 by 
virtue of mineral extraction from beneath the site and adjoining land being not feasible due 
to the depth of deposit, particularly once sufficient buffers from residential receptors have 
been applied. There are also negative environmental impacts associated with mineral 
extraction which in this location would likely be significant and unacceptable.  

Ecology

53. The Greater Manchester Ecological Unit (the Council’s ecology advisor) has reviewed the 
applicant’s ecological assessment and concluded that the proposal is acceptable, subject to 
conditions and submission of an Ecological Enhancement and Management Plan with any 
reserved matters application.  These details should include measures for long term 
monitoring, funding and details of the responsible party. The proposal is, therefore, not 
anticipated to have any unacceptable impacts upon ecological receptors. 

Community Infrastructure Levy

54. The Chorley CIL Infrastructure Charging Schedule provides a specific amount for 
development. The CIL Charging Schedule was adopted on 16 July 2013 and charging 
commenced on 1 September 2013. The proposed development will be a chargeable 
development and the charge is subject to indexation in accordance with the Council’s 
Charging Schedule.

CONCLUSION

55. The proposed development would be located mostly within an area of Safeguarded Land as 
defined by the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026.  The Council has a five year housing land 
supply as required by the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal, therefore, 
conflicts with policy BNE3 ‘Areas of Land Safeguarded for Future Development Needs’ of 
the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026. It is not considered that the material considerations 
put forward in favour of the development are sufficient to outweigh the presumption against 
it.

Agenda Page 55 Agenda Item 3e



RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE

Ref: 17/00411/OUTMAJ Decision: REFOPP Decision Date: 13 September 
2017
Description: Outline application for residential development for up to 25 dwellings with all 
matters reserved save for access from Carrington Road.

RELEVANT POLICIES:  In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central 
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted 
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/ 
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

Agenda Page 56 Agenda Item 3e



Scale 1:1250

Rigshaw
Bridge

FB

BO
ND'S LANE

3
1

11

40
50

6

1
3

1

2

Tank

Allotment Gardens

3850

81

71

109

10
3

60

91

125

ROADCARRINGTON

H
O

LD
EN

 STR
EET

RO
AD

STO
N

O
R

2

1

5

12

5

2

to 28
14 12

R
O

AD

CARRINGTON

43

63

57

30

40

29

17

55
Track

Cottages
Rigshaw Bridge

Allotment
Gardens

Allanson Hall Farm

31

1
3

4

Allanson Hall Cottage

Pipe

Pond

Drain

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90    100 m

Digi
map

Agenda Page 57 Agenda Item 3e

Paul
Polygon



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – 18/00843/FULMAJ

Validation Date: 6 September 2018

Ward: Coppull

Type of Application: Major Full Planning

Proposal: Construction of Dairy Unit housing up to 600 cows of various ages and 
associated infrastructure

Location: Land East Of Wigan Lane Coppull  

Case Officer: Mr Iain Crossland

Applicant: J & B Woodcock & Sons

Agent: ADAS

Consultation expiry: 8 November 2018

Decision due by: 6 December 2018

SUMMARY

The application has been submitted by ADAS on behalf of  J & B Woodcock & Sons for the 
construction of a Dairy Unit housing up to 600 cows of various ages and associated 
infrastructure. This would involve the erection of a large cow shed, feed store building, feed 
clamps and ancillary office building and plant. The site would be accessed via an existing 
access to Wigan Lane that currently serves a sand quarry.

RECOMMENDATION

Given the nature of the third party interest that the proposed development has generated, and 
the issues that require the consideration of the Development Control Committee, it is 
recommended that in advance of a full and detailed consideration of the proposal, a site visit 
should be arranged for all members of the committee. This will have the benefit of avoiding the 
need to defer the application for a site visit at a future committee meeting. It is recommended 
that the site visit should take place during daylight hours at a time that would enable all 
members of the committee to attend.

It is anticipated that the application will be considered in detail at the 21st November 2018 
meeting of the Development Control Committee.

Agenda Page 59 Agenda Item 3f



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 61

Agenda Item 3f



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Meeting Date

Director (Customer & Digital) Development Control Committee 6 November 2018

PLANNING APPEALS AND DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN
1 SEPTEMBER 2018 AND 29 OCTOBER 2018

PLANNING APPEALS LODGED

Planning Application: 18/00656/FULHH - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/W/18/3211731

Appeal by Mr Ben Constable against conditions imposed on the delegated decision to grant planning 
permission for the conversion of garage into a habitable space and addition of a single storey rear orangery 
extension. 

11 Hudson Drive, Buckshaw Village, Chorley, PR7 7LA.

Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 22 October 2018.

Planning Application: 18/00113/COU - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/W/18/3212353

Appeal by Dr Gora Bangi against the Development Control Committee decision to refuse full planning 
permission for the change of use from offices (Use Class A2) to a GP surgery (Use Class D1). 

Ann James House, 32 - 34 St Thomas's Road, Chorley, PR7 1HR. 

Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 2 October 2018.

Planning Application: 18/00331/FUL - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/W/18/3214088

Appeal by Mr John Adshead against the Development Control Committee decision to refuse full planning 
permission for the erection of a detached dormer bungalow dwelling (following demolition of garages and 
carport).

5 Glamis Drive, Chorley, PR7 1LX.

Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 24 October 2018.

Planning Application: 18/00631/FUL - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/W/18/3214120

Appeal by Mr R Abrol against the Development Control Committee decision to refuse full planning 
permission for a side extension to existing warehouse. 

Elite Plumbing And Heating Supplies Ltd, Unit 21, Highfield Industrial Estate, North Street, Chorley. 

Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 25 October 2018.

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 4



APPEAL DECISIONS

Planning Application: 18/00549/FULHH - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/D/18/3208857 

Appeal by Mr & Mrs Robinson against the delegated decision to refuse full planning permission for front 
conservatory. 

19 Chiltern Meadow, Clayton-Le-Woods, Leyland, PR25 5UZ.

Appeal dismissed.

Inspectorate decision letter received 19 September 2018.

Planning Application: 18/00210/FUL - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/W/18/3203384

Appeal by Mrs Kim Heynes against the delegated decision to refuse full planning Permission for the 
erection of a stable block and manege for private use. 

Holly Cottage, Back Lane, Heath Charnock, Chorley, PR6 9DW

Appeal dismissed.

Inspectorate decision letter received 5 September 2018.

PLANNING APPEALS WITHDRAWN

None

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS LODGED

None

ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS

Enforcement Case: 15/00154/COUDWL - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/C/18/3203092.

Appeal by Christopher Holden against Enforcement Notice relating to unauthorised change of use of land to 
the rear of 325, at 325 Preston Road, Clayton-Le-Woods, Chorley, PR6 7PY, 

Appeal dismissed.

Inspectorate decision letter received 15 October 2018.

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS WITHDRAWN

None

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID
Adele Hayes 5228 29 October 2018 ***

Agenda Page 64 Agenda Item 4


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 2 October 2018 of Development Control Committee
	3a 18/00191/FUL - Land Rear of 24/26 Westhoughton Road, Adlington
	Item 3a Location Plan

	3b 18/00560/FUL - Sarscow Farm, Sarscow Lane, Eccleston, Leyland
	Item 3b Location Plan

	3c 18/00586/FUL - Land at the Rear of 63 and 67 Bolton Road, Chorley
	Item 3c Location Plan

	3d 18/00847/FUL - Land to the Rear of 56 School Lane, Withnell Fold Old Road, Brinscall
	Item 3d Location Plan

	3e 18/00863/OUTMAJ - Land at Carrington Road, Adlington
	Item 3e Location Plan

	3f 18/00843/FULMAJ - Land East of Wigan Lane, Coppull
	Item 3f Location Plan

	4 Planning Appeals and Decisions Received Between 1 September 2018 and 29 October 2018



